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CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

Document Date Filed Vol. Page

Complaint 4/29/2016 1
AA 1 –
AA 41

Acceptance of Service 7/28/2016 1
AA 42 –
AA 43

Notice of Entry of Order Regarding
PwC’s Motion to Dismiss

12/13/2016 1
AA 44 –
AA 50

Answer to Complaint 1/17/2017 1
AA 51 –
AA 73

Notice of Appeal 5/25/2017 1
AA 74 –
AA 76

Notice of Entry of Order Regarding
PwC’s Motion for Summary
Judgment

6/5/2017 1
AA 77 –
AA 83

Exhibits to PwC’s Motion for
Summary Judgment

6/14/2018 1-2
AA 84 –
AA 366

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Opposition to
PwC’s Motion for Summary
Judgment

8/1/2018 2-4
AA 367 –
AA 863

Transcript of Hearing on PwC’s
Motion for Summary Judgment

9/24/2018 4
AA 864 –
AA 884

Notice of Entry of Order Granting
PwC’s Motion for Summary
Judgment

10/24/2018 4
AA 885 –
AA 891

Notice of Entry of Order Granting
Motion for Leave to File Amended
Complaint

3/27/2019 4
AA 892 –
AA 897

Amended Complaint 4/1/2019 4
AA 898 –
AA 944

Notice of Entry of Order Denying
PwC’s Motion to Dismiss

7/31/2019 4
AA 945 –
AA 950

Answer to Amended Complaint 8/12/2019 4
AA 951 –
AA 981

Notice of Entry of Order Regarding
Motions in Limine

12/30/2020 4
AA 982 –
AA 987

Notice of Entry of Order Denying
PwC’s Motion for Summary

01/20/2021 4
AA 988 –
AA 992
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Judgment and Motion to Strike Jury
Demand
Notice of Entry of Order Denying
PwC’s Motion for Summary
Judgment and Motion to Limit
Damages

4/14/2022 4
AA 993 –
AA 1000

Notice of Entry of Order Granting
PwC’s Motion to Strike Jury
Demand

4/29/2022 5
AA 1001 –
AA 1012

Notice of Entry of Order Denying
PwC’s Renewed Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment

6/16/2022 5
AA 1013 –
AA 1022

Notice of Entry of Judgment 2/22/2023 5
AA 1023 –
AA 1067

PwC’s Appendix to Its Motion for
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs – Publicly
Filed Version

3/15/2023 5
AA 1068 –
AA 1207

PwC’s Appendix to Its Motion for
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs –
Intentionally Omitted Filed Under
Seal

3/15/2023 n/a
AA 1208 –
AA 1271

Notice of Appeal 3/23/2023 5
AA 1272 –
AA 1274

Amended Notice of Appeal 3/24/2023 5
AA 1275 –
AA 1277

Transcript of Hearing on PwC’s
Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and
Costs

5/30/2023 6
AA 1278 –
AA 1357

Plaintiff’s NRCP 60(b) Motion 8/21/2023 6
AA 1358 –
AA 1473

Notice of Entry of Order on PwC’s
Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and
Costs

8/28/2023 6
AA 1474 –
AA 1523

PwC’s Opposition to Plaintiff’s
NRCP 60(b) Motion

9/20/2023 7
AA 1524 –
AA 1634

Notice of Appeal 9/26/2023 7
AA 1635 –
AA 1636

Plaintiff’s Reply Supporting His
NRCP 60(b) Motion

10/25/2023 7
AA 1637 –
AA 1709
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Transcript of Hearing on Plaintiff’s
NRCP 60(b) Motion

11/2/2023 7
AA 1710 –
AA 1759

Notice of Entry of Order Denying
Plaintiff’s NRCP 60(b) Motion

11/28/2023 7
AA 1760 –
AA 1772

Notice of Entry of Order Denying in
Part and Deferring in Part Plaintiff’s
Motion for Stay of Execution
Without Supersedeas Bond

12/4/2023 8
AA 1773 –
AA 1780

Notice of Appeal 12/22/2023 8
AA 1781 –
AA 1783

Notice of Entry of Order Denying:
(1) Plaintiff’s Motion for Stay of
Execution Without Supersedeas
Bond and (2) Plaintiff’s Oral Motion
to Stay Execution for Thirty Days

3/13/2024 8
AA 1784 –
AA 1795

Exhibit H to Opposition to PwC’s
Motion for Summary Judgment

04/17/2017 8
AA 1796 –
AA 1797

Notice of Entry of Order Granting
Discovery Sanctions

12/08/2022 8
AA 1798 –
AA 1811

Exhibit 51 to Plaintiff’s Appendix to
Opposition to PwC’s Renewed
Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment

05/19/2022 8
AA 1812 –
AA 1822

Exhibit 3 to Plaintiff’s Appendix in
Opposition to PwC's Renewed
Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment

05/19/2022 8
AA 1823 –
AA 1826

Exhibit 4 to Plaintiff’s Appendix in
Opposition to PwC's Renewed
Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment

05/19/2022 8
AA 1827 –
AA 1829
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AA 42 –
AA 43

Amended Complaint 4/1/2019 4
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Exhibit H to Opposition to PwC’s
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Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Opposition to
PwC’s Motion for Summary
Judgment

8/1/2018 2-4
AA 367 –
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Exhibits to PwC’s Motion for
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6/14/2018 1-2
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AA 366

Notice of Appeal 5/25/2017 1
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PwC’s Motion for Summary
Judgment and Motion to Strike Jury
Demand

01/20/2021 4
AA 988 –
AA 992

Notice of Entry of Order Denying
PwC’s Motion for Summary
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Notice of Entry of Order Regarding
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Judgment

6/5/2017 1
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Notice of Entry of Order Regarding
PwC’s Motion to Dismiss
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AA 44 –
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify pursuant to NRAP 25(c), that on this 8th day of April, 2024, I

caused service of a true and correct copy of the above and APPELLANT’S

APPENDIX TO OPENING BRIEF pursuant to the Supreme Court Electronic Filing

System to the following:

ALL COUNSEL ON SERVICE LIST

/s/ Kaylee Conradi
An employee of Hutchison & Steffen PLLC
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Patrick G. Byrne, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 7636 
SNELL & WILMER L.L.P. 

3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1100 
Las Vegas, NV 89169 
Telephone: 702-784-5200 
Facsimile: 702-784-5252 
pbyrne@swlaw.com 
 
Peter B. Morrison, Esq. (Pro Hac Vice admitted)  
peter.morrison@skadden.com  
Winston P. Hsiao, Esq. (Pro Hac Vice admitted)  
winston.hsiao@skadden.com 
SKADDEN, ARPS, SLATE, MEAGHER & FLOM LLP 
300 South Grand Avenue, Suite 3400 
Los Angeles, CA  90071-3144 
Telephone: (213) 687-5000 
Facsimile: (213) 687-5600 
 
Attorneys for Defendant 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
 

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA   

MICHAEL A. TRICARICHI, an individual, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP, 
COÖPERATIEVE RABOBANK U.A., 
UTRECHT-AMERICA FINANCE CO., 
SEYFARTH SHAW LLP, and GRAHAM R. 
TAYLOR, 

Defendants. 

Case No.   A-16-735910-B 
 
Dept. No.  XV 
 
 

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS 
LLP’S AMENDED RESPONSE TO 
PLAINTIFF’S FIRST SET OF 
INTERROGATORIES  

Defendant PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) responds to Plaintiff Michael A. 

Tricarichi’s First Set of Interrogatories (the “Interrogatories”) as follows: 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

1. PwC’s Objections and Responses are solely for the purpose of this action.   

2. PwC’s Objections and Responses to the Interrogatories are set forth below.  By 

asserting the specific responses and objections stated below, PwC does not waive its right to 

challenge the relevance, materiality, or admissibility of the Interrogatories and/or its responses 

AA 000580
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thereto, or the use of the Interrogatories and/or its responses thereto in any subsequent proceeding 

or trial in this action. 

3. PwC’s Objections and Responses are based upon the information and documents 

presently available to, and known by, PwC and disclose only those contentions, which are 

presently asserted based upon facts now known.  It is anticipated that further investigation, legal 

research and analysis will supply additional facts, add meaning to known facts, and lead to new 

factual conclusions and legal contentions, all of which may result in substantial addition to, 

change in, and/or variations from these contentions and responses, and supplementation of them, 

where appropriate.  PwC reserves the right to supplement or modify any of these Objections and 

Responses as additional facts are recalled or ascertained, analyses are rendered, legal research is 

completed and contentions are made. 

GENERAL OBJECTIONS 

The General Objections set forth herein apply to all Interrogatories made by Plaintiff, and 

all documents that PwC will produce in this litigation.  The following General Objections are 

continuing in nature and are hereby incorporated into the specific Objections and Responses set 

forth below:  

1. PwC objects to the general scope of the Interrogatories in that “any” or “all” 

information is requested, phrases which render the Interrogatories unduly burdensome, overbroad, 

unreasonable, and oppressive. 

2. PwC objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they call for information outside 

the scope of the Court’s May 30, 2017 Order (“May 30 Order”) limiting Plaintiff’s discovery to 

that “necessary to oppose PwC’s summary judgment as set forth in Paragraph 10” of Plaintiff’s 

April 7, 2017 Affidavit in opposition to PwC’s Motion for Summary Judgment (“Tricarichi 

Affidavit”) – which the Court noted was not “necessarily super clear.” 

3. PwC objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they call for information that is 

neither relevant to the subject matter of this action nor reasonably calculated to lead to the 

discovery of admissible evidence. 
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4. PwC objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek information or 

documents from a time period not relevant to the action and not reasonably calculated to lead to 

the discovery of admissible evidence, and/or beyond the scope of the May 30 Order. 

5. PwC objects to the Interrogatories to the extent each Interrogatory is vague and 

ambiguous and fails to identify the requested information with sufficient particularity. 

6. PwC objects to the Interrogatories insofar as they are redundant and overlapping 

and, therefore, are unduly burdensome. 

7. PwC objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek to require PwC to 

comply with requirements beyond those imposed by the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, or 

exceed the permissible scope of discovery under the law. 

8. PwC objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek information protected by 

the attorney-client privilege, the work product doctrine, the official information privilege, and/or 

other privileges recognized under the constitutional, statutory, and decisional law of the United 

States or the State of Nevada. 

9. PwC objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek confidential, private, or 

sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third party’s contractual, constitutional, statutory, 

or common law right of privacy or protection, including, but not limited to, 26 U.S.C. §§ 6713 

and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-client privilege, and/or AICPA professional 

standards.   

10. PwC objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek information not known 

to PwC or not in PwC’s possession, custody, or control. 

11. PwC objects to the Interrogatories to the extent that the information sought is 

obtainable from other sources, including those that are publicly available, that are more 

convenient, less burdensome, or less expensive. 

12. PwC objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they call for, or can be interpreted 

as calling for, legal conclusions.     

13. No incidental or implied admissions are intended by the Objections and Responses 

herein.  The fact that PwC has objected to any Interrogatory should not be taken as an admission 
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that responsive information exists or that PwC accepts or admits the existence of any fact set forth 

or assumed by such Interrogatory, or that such objection constitutes admissible evidence.  

14. Nothing contained in these Objections and Responses is intended as, nor shall in 

any way be deemed, a waiver of the attorney-client privilege, work product doctrine, official 

information privilege, the right of privacy, or any other applicable privilege or protection.  Any 

production or disclosure of privileged information is inadvertent and shall not constitute a waiver 

of the privilege with respect to the subject matter addressed therein. 

15. PwC is providing these Objections and Responses without waiving, or intending to 

waive, but on the contrary preserving, and intending to preserve:  (i) the right to object, on the 

grounds of competency, privilege, relevance or materiality, or any other proper grounds, to the 

use of these Objections and Responses for any purpose, in whole or in part, in any subsequent 

stage or proceeding in this action; (ii) the right to object on any and all grounds, at any time, to 

other Interrogatories or other discovery procedures involving or relating to the subject matter of 

the Interrogatories to which PwC has responded herein; and (iii) the right at any time to revise, 

correct, add to, or clarify any of the Objections and Responses propounded herein. 

16. The foregoing Preliminary Statement and General Objections are hereby expressly 

incorporated into each of the specific Objections and Responses below. 

OBJECTIONS TO DEFINITIONS 

1. PwC generally objects to the Definitions set forth in the Interrogatories to the 

extent they attempt to define words beyond their ordinary meaning. 

2. PwC generally objects to the Definitions on the grounds and to the extent they 

cause the specific Interrogatories to be overbroad and unduly burdensome.  PwC also objects to 

the Definitions to the extent they cause the Interrogatories to call for information that is 

privileged, not relevant to the subject matter involved in this action, not admissible in evidence, 

or not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.  

3. PwC generally objects to the Definitions to the extent they render any 

Interrogatory overbroad, unduly burdensome, or oppressive. 
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4. PwC generally objects to the Definitions to the extent they purport to place upon 

PwC obligations different from or greater than those imposed by Nevada statute, the Nevada 

Rules of Civil Procedure, and any other applicable law.  Whenever the Definitions conflict with 

the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, PwC will comply with the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure 

and not Plaintiff’s Definitions. 

5. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “You,” “Your,” and “PwC” to the extent 

Plaintiff defines these terms to include “Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP and each of its current and 

former employees, owners, and any predecessors, successors, or affiliates, and any other persons 

or attorneys acting on its, his, her or their behalf, including Richard Stovsky and Timothy 

Lohnes.”  Such a boilerplate definition calls for a legal conclusion; is overbroad; seeks documents 

from outside of PwC’s possession, custody, or control; is vague and ambiguous; and is unduly 

burdensome.  In addition, PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “You,” “Your,” and “PwC” to 

the extent that it causes the Interrogatories to seek documents protected by the attorney-client 

and/or work product privilege. 

6. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Plaintiff” to the extent Plaintiff defines 

that term to include “Michael A. Tricarichi and each of his current and former employees, 

owners, and any predecessors, successors, or affiliates, and any other persons or attorneys acting 

on its, his, her or their behalf.”  Such a boilerplate definition calls for a legal conclusion; is 

overbroad; is vague and ambiguous; and is unduly burdensome.   

7. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Seyfarth Shaw” to the extent Plaintiff 

defines that term to include “Seyfarth Shaw LLP and each of its current and former employees, 

owners, and any predecessors, successors, or affiliates, and any other persons or attorneys acting 

on its, his, her or their behalf, including Graham R. Taylor and John E. Rogers.”  Such a 

boilerplate definition calls for a legal conclusion; is overbroad; seeks documents from outside of 

PwC’s possession, custody, or control; is vague and ambiguous; and is unduly burdensome.   

8. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Rabobank” to the extent Plaintiff defines 

that term to include “Cooperatieve Rabobank U.A. and each of its current and former employees, 

owners, and any predecessors, successors, or affiliates, and any other persons or attorneys acting 

AA 000584



 

 
- 6 -  

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Sn
el

l &
 W

ilm
er

  L
.L

.P
.  

 
L

A
W

 O
F

F
IC

E
S

 
5

0
 W

es
t 

L
ib

er
ty

 S
tr

ee
t,

 S
u

it
e 

5
1

0
 

R
en

o
, 

N
ev

ad
a 

 8
9

5
0

1
 

7
7

5
-7

8
5

-5
4

4
0

 

on its, his, her or their behalf.”  Such a boilerplate definition calls for a legal conclusion; is 

overbroad; seeks documents from outside of PwC’s possession, custody, or control; is vague and 

ambiguous; and is unduly burdensome. 

9. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Utrecht” to the extent Plaintiff defines 

that term to include “Utrecht-America Finance Co. and each of its current and former employees, 

owners, and any predecessors, successors, or affiliates, and any other persons or attorneys acting 

on its, his, her or their behalf.”  Such a boilerplate definition calls for a legal conclusion; is 

overbroad; seeks documents from outside of PwC’s possession, custody, or control; is vague and 

ambiguous; and is unduly burdensome.   

10. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Taylor” to the extent Plaintiff defines that 

term to include “Graham R. Taylor and each of his current and former employees, owners, and 

any predecessors, successors, or affiliates, and any other persons or attorneys acting on its, his, 

her or their behalf.”  Such a boilerplate definition calls for a legal conclusion; is overbroad; seeks 

documents from outside of PwC’s possession, custody, or control; is vague and ambiguous; and is 

unduly burdensome.   

11. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Fortrend” to the extent Plaintiff defines 

that term to include “Fortrend International LLC and each of its current and former employees, 

owners, and any predecessors, successors, or affiliates, and any other persons or attorneys acting 

on its, his, her or their behalf, including John P. McNabola and Timothy H. Vu (f/k/a Timothy H. 

Conn, a/k/a Timothy Conn Vu) (“Conn Vu”).”  Such a boilerplate definition calls for a legal 

conclusion; is overbroad; seeks documents from outside of PwC’s possession, custody, or control; 

is vague and ambiguous; and is unduly burdensome. 

12. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Midcoast” to the extent Plaintiff defines 

that term to include “Midcoast Credit Corp. and each of its current and former employees, 

owners, and any predecessors, successors, or affiliates, and any other persons or attorneys acting 

on its, his, her or their behalf.”  Such a boilerplate definition calls for a legal conclusion; is 

overbroad; seeks documents from outside of PwC’s possession, custody, or control; is vague and 

ambiguous; and is unduly burdensome.     

AA 000585



 

 
- 7 -  

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Sn
el

l &
 W

ilm
er

  L
.L

.P
.  

 
L

A
W

 O
F

F
IC

E
S

 
5

0
 W

es
t 

L
ib

er
ty

 S
tr

ee
t,

 S
u

it
e 

5
1

0
 

R
en

o
, 

N
ev

ad
a 

 8
9

5
0

1
 

7
7

5
-7

8
5

-5
4

4
0

 

13. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Midco” to the extent Plaintiff defines that 

term to include “the concept, strategy, or use of an intermediary entity to facilitate a business 

transaction and/or to reduce the tax implications of the transaction to the buyer and/or seller, by 

which an intermediary entity acquires stock from the selling party and subsequently transfers 

assets to the buying party.”  This Definition calls for a legal conclusion; is vague and ambiguous; 

is overbroad; seeks information not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and/or is not 

reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence to the extent it includes 

transactions not at issue in this action; seeks information beyond the scope of the Court’s May 30 

Order; seeks documents from outside of PwC’s possession, custody, or control; and is unduly 

burdensome.  In addition, PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Midco” to the extent it causes 

the Interrogatories to seek documents protected by the attorney-client and/or work product 

privilege.  PwC further objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Midco” to the extent it causes the 

Interrogatories to seek confidential, private, or sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a 

third party’s contractual, constitutional, statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection. 

14. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Midco Transaction” to the extent Plaintiff 

defines that term to include “a transaction employing or consistent with the Midco concept or 

strategy, or consistent with or substantially similar to the transaction(s) described in IRS Notice 

2001-16, IRS Notice 2008-20 or IRS Notice 2008-111.”  This Definition calls for a legal 

conclusion; is vague and ambiguous; is overbroad; seeks information not relevant to the subject 

matter of this litigation and/or is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 

evidence to the extent it includes transactions not at issue in this action; seeks information beyond  

the scope of the Court’s May 30 Order; seeks documents from outside of PwC’s possession, 

custody, or control; and is unduly burdensome.  In addition, PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition 

of “Midco Transaction” to the extent it causes the Interrogatories to seek documents protected by 

the attorney-client and/or work product privilege.  PwC further objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of 

“Midco Transaction” to the extent it causes the Interrogatories to seek confidential, private, or 

sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third party’s contractual, constitutional, statutory, 

or common law right of privacy or protection. 
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15. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Fortrend Transaction” to the extent 

Plaintiff defines that term to include “a Midco Transaction or the transaction in which the 

Plaintiff participated, as described in Plaintiff’s Complaint, which was found to be a Midco 

Transaction.”  This Definition calls for a legal conclusion; is vague and ambiguous; is overbroad; 

seeks information not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and/or is not reasonably 

calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence to the extent it includes transactions not 

at issue in this action; seeks information beyond the scope of the Court’s May 30 Order; seeks 

documents from outside of PwC’s possession, custody, or control; and is unduly burdensome.  In 

addition, PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Fortrend Transaction” to the extent it causes 

the Interrogatories to seek documents protected by the attorney-client and/or work product 

privilege.  PwC further objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Fortrend Transaction” to the extent it 

causes the Interrogatories to seek confidential, private, or sensitive information subject to PwC’s 

and/or a third party’s contractual, constitutional, statutory, or common law right of privacy or 

protection. 

16. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Listed Transaction” to the extent Plaintiff 

defines that term to include “a transaction that is the same as or substantially similar to one of the 

types of transactions previously or subsequently determined by the IRS to be a tax avoidance 

transaction by being identified as such by notice, regulation, or other form of published 

guidance.”  This Definition calls for a legal conclusion; is vague and ambiguous; is overbroad; 

seeks information not relevant to the subject matter of this litigation and/or is not reasonably 

calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence to the extent it includes transactions not 

at issue in this action; seeks information beyond the scope of the Court’s May 30 Order; seeks 

documents from outside of PwC’s possession, custody, or control; and is unduly burdensome.  In 

addition, PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Listed Transaction” to the extent it causes the 

Interrogatories to seek documents protected by the attorney-client and/or work product privilege.  

PwC further objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Listed Transaction” to the extent it causes the 

Interrogatories to seek confidential, private, or sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a 

third party’s contractual, constitutional, statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection. 

AA 000587



 

 
- 9 -  

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Sn
el

l &
 W

ilm
er

  L
.L

.P
.  

 
L

A
W

 O
F

F
IC

E
S

 
5

0
 W

es
t 

L
ib

er
ty

 S
tr

ee
t,

 S
u

it
e 

5
1

0
 

R
en

o
, 

N
ev

ad
a 

 8
9

5
0

1
 

7
7

5
-7

8
5

-5
4

4
0

 

17. PwC objects to Plaintiff’s Definition of “Document” to the extent it goes beyond 

the requirements of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure.    

OBJECTIONS TO INSTRUCTIONS 

1. PwC generally objects to the Instructions set forth in the Interrogatories to the 

extent they attempt to define words beyond their ordinary meaning. 

2. PwC generally objects to the Instructions on the grounds and to the extent they 

cause the specific Interrogatories to be overbroad and unduly burdensome.  PwC also objects to 

the Instructions to the extent they cause the Interrogatories to call for information that is 

privileged, not relevant to the subject matter involved in this action, not admissible in evidence, 

or not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.  

3. PwC generally objects to the Instructions to the extent they render any 

Interrogatory overbroad, unduly burdensome, or oppressive. 

4. PwC generally objects to the Instructions to the extent they purport to place upon 

PwC obligations different from or greater than those imposed by Nevada statute, the Nevada 

Rules of Civil Procedure, and any other applicable law.  Whenever the Instructions conflict with 

the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, PwC will comply with the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure 

and not Plaintiff’s Instructions. 

5. PwC objects to the Instructions to the extent they cause the Interrogatories to seek 

information from a time period not relevant to the action and not reasonably calculated to lead to 

the discovery of admissible evidence, and/or beyond the scope of the May 30 Order. 

OBJECTIONS AND RESPONSES TO INTERROGATORIES 

INTERROGATORY NO. 1: 

For the period between September 9, 2003, and the present, identify and describe all 

communications You have had with or regarding Plaintiff, or regarding the Fortrend Transaction, 

including communications with the IRS. 

RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 
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following grounds:  (i) the word “all” renders the Request overbroad, unduly burdensome, 

unreasonable, and oppressive; (ii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “with or 

regarding Plaintiff, or regarding the Fortrend Transaction, including communications with the 

IRS”; (iii) to the extent the Interrogatory contains multiple separate and distinct interrogatories; 

(iv) to the extent it seeks information beyond the scope of the May 30 Order; (v) it is overbroad, 

and unduly burdensome as to time; (vi) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks information protected 

by the attorney-client privilege, work product doctrine, and/or other privileges recognized under 

the constitutional, statutory, and decisional law of the United States or the State of Nevada; and 

(vii) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks confidential, private, or sensitive information subject to 

PwC’s and/or a third party’s contractual, constitutional, statutory, or common law right of privacy 

or protection, including, but not limited to, 26 U.S.C. §§ 6713 and 7216, and any other applicable 

accountant-client privilege, and/or AICPA professional standards. 

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

supplement its responses, PwC responds with the following communications with Plaintiff or 

non-privileged communications regarding the Fortrend Transaction: 

Internal PwC communications and communications with Jim Tricarichi in September and 

October 2003, regarding Plaintiff’s Ohio personal income tax return.  (See PwC-000277; PwC-

001183; PwC-001184; PwC-001246.) 

Communication with Jim Tricarichi in November 2003 regarding outstanding invoices.  

(See PwC-001226.) 

Internal PwC communications between Richard Stovsky and Tim Lohnes in November 

2003 regarding IRS Notice 2003-76 and the Fortrend Transaction.  (See PwC-000278; PwC-

000715; PwC-000717.) 

On January 29, 2008, PwC received a summons from the IRS seeking documents 

concerning the Fortrend Transaction. PwC responded to the IRS Summons and produced 

documents to the IRS on February 22, 2008, as produced in this action: PwC-000001 through 

PwC-001228.  PwC provided a copy of the production to the IRS to Plaintiff on September 17, 
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2009.  On August 2, 2013, PwC produced supplemental documents to the IRS regarding the 

Fortrend Transaction, as produced in this action:  PwC-001229 through PwC-001323. 

Internal PwC communications in March 2008 between Richard Stovsky and Tim Lohnes 

concerning IRS Notice 2008-34, describing Distressed Asset Trust Transactions, in which Tim 

Lohnes stated IRS Notice 2008-34 should not apply to the Fortrend Transaction. 

Internal PwC communications in December 2008 between Richard Stovsky and Tim 

Lohnes concerning IRS Notice 2008-111 clarifying IRS Notice 2001-16, in which Tim Lohnes 

and Richard Stovsky discussed that IRS Notice 2008-111 did not alter their prior analysis of the 

Fortrend Transaction.   

Beginning in January 2011, PwC and Plaintiff negotiated a tolling agreement.  The parties 

entered into a tolling agreement on February 2, 2011, that tolled the statute of limitations for any 

claims against PwC “arising from the services performed by PwC” relating to the Fortrend 

Transaction which were not already time-barred by January 19, 2011.  The parties renewed the 

tolling agreement on January 24, 2012, October 11, 2012, January 20, 2014, September 16, 2015, 

and October 23, 2015. 

After PwC’s engagement with Plaintiff ended in 2003, Richard Stovsky, between 2008 

and 2015, had conversations with Jim Tricarichi, Plaintiff’s brother, that sometimes included a 

discussion of Plaintiff’s IRS and Tax Court proceeding.   

Prior to providing testimony in Plaintiff’s Tax Court proceedings, PwC witnesses met 

with Plaintiff’s counsel in August 2013, December 2013 and June 2014. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 2: 

Identify and describe any Midco Transaction regarding which you provided advice or 

otherwise participated, with respect to which a taxpayer was later determined, by the IRS or the 

Tax Court, to have transferee or other tax liability.  Please include in Your response to the date(s) 

of the transaction(s) and of the determination(s) of liability; a description of Your role in the 

transaction(s); and the identity of the other participants in the transaction(s).  
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RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 

following grounds:  (i) the word “any” renders the Request overbroad, unduly burdensome, 

unreasonable, and oppressive; (ii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase 

“describe”; (iii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “provided advice or 

otherwise participated”; (iv) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “transferee or 

other tax liability”; (v) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to “Your role in the 

transaction(s)”; (vi) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to “determination(s) of liability”; 

(vii) to the extent the Interrogatory contains multiple separate and distinct interrogatories; (viii) 

to the extent the defined term “Midco Transactions” calls for a legal conclusion and seeks 

information not relevant to the subject matter involved in this action and goes beyond the 

allegations in the Complaint and/or is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence; (ix) to the extent it seeks information beyond the scope of the May 30 

Order; (x) it is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and unduly burdensome as to time; (xi) to the 

extent the Interrogatory seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege, work 

product doctrine, and/or other privileges recognized under the constitutional, statutory, and 

decisional law of the United States or the State of Nevada; and (xii) to the extent the 

Interrogatory seeks confidential, private, or sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third 

party’s contractual, constitutional, statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection, 

including, but not limited to, 26 U.S.C. §§ 6713 and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-

client privilege, and/or AICPA professional standards. 

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

supplement its responses, PwC responds as follows: 

PwC provided tax advice in connection with the transaction at issue in Enbridge Energy 

Co., Inc. v. U.S., Case No. H-06-0657 (S.D. Tex.) (the “Bishop Transaction”), which to PwC’s 

knowledge did not involve issues of transferee liability.  PwC advised the buyer Midcoast 
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Energy Resources, Inc. in respect to the Bishop Transaction from roughly August 1999 to 

September 2001.  PwC refers to the public court decisions for the determination of liability.   

PwC provided tax advice in connection with the transaction at issue in Marshall et al. v. 

C.I.R., Nos. 27241-11 et al. (U.S. Tax Court) (the “Marshall Transaction”) in 2003.  PwC refers 

to the public Tax Court order for the determination of liability.  

INTERROGATORY NO. 3: 

Identify and describe any Midco Transactions regarding which you provided advice or 

otherwise participated, with respect to which a taxpayer was later investigated or audited by the 

IRS.  Please include in Your response the date of the transaction(s) and of the investigation or 

audit; a description of Your role in the transaction(s); and the identity of the participants in the 

transaction(s). 

RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 

following grounds:  (i) the word “any” renders the Request overbroad, unduly burdensome, 

unreasonable, and oppressive; it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “describe”; 

(iii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “provided advice or otherwise 

participated”; (iv) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the word “investigated”; (v) it is 

vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to “Your role in the transaction(s)”; (vi) to the extent the 

Interrogatory contains multiple separate and distinct interrogatories; (vii) to the extent the 

defined term “Midco Transactions” calls for a legal conclusion and seeks information not 

relevant to the subject matter involved in this action and goes beyond the allegations in the 

Complaint and/or is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence; 

(viii) to the extent it seeks information beyond the scope of the May 30 Order; (ix) it is vague, 

ambiguous, overbroad, and unduly burdensome as to time; (x) to the extent the Interrogatory 

seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege, work product doctrine, and/or other 

privileges recognized under the constitutional, statutory, and decisional law of the United States 

or the State of Nevada; and (xi) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks confidential, private, or 

AA 000592



 

 
- 14 -  

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Sn
el

l &
 W

ilm
er

  L
.L

.P
.  

 
L

A
W

 O
F

F
IC

E
S

 
5

0
 W

es
t 

L
ib

er
ty

 S
tr

ee
t,

 S
u

it
e 

5
1

0
 

R
en

o
, 

N
ev

ad
a 

 8
9

5
0

1
 

7
7

5
-7

8
5

-5
4

4
0

 

sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third party’s contractual, constitutional, 

statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection, including, but not limited to, 26 U.S.C. 

§§ 6713 and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-client privilege, and/or AICPA 

professional standards. 

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

supplement its responses, PwC responds as follows: 

PwC provided tax advice in connection with the Bishop Transaction, which to PwC’s 

knowledge, did not involve issues of transferee liability.  PwC advised the buyer Midcoast 

Energy Resources, Inc. in respect to the Bishop Transaction, from roughly August 1999 to 

September 2001. 

PwC provided tax advice in connection with the Marshall Transaction in 2003. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 4: 

Identify all PwC personnel who performed any work in connection with any Midco 

strategy or Midco transaction identified in response to Interrogatory No. 2 or No. 3 above, or in 

connection with the Bishop Midco Transaction or the Marshall Midco Transaction, and provide a 

brief description of their role(s) in connection with such transaction(s), when their work took 

place, and what transaction(s) their work was in connection with. 

RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 

following grounds:  (i) the words “all” and “any” render the Interrogatory overbroad, unduly 

burdensome, unreasonable, and oppressive; (ii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the 

phrase “performed any work in connection with”; (iii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as 

to the phrase “brief description of their role(s)”; (iv) to the extent the Interrogatory contains 

multiple separate and distinct interrogatories; (v) to the extent the defined terms “Midco” and 

“Midco Transaction” call for a legal conclusion and seek information not relevant to the subject 

matter involved in this action and goes beyond the allegations in the Complaint and/or is not 
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reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence; (vi) to the extent the 

Interrogatory seeks information beyond the scope of the May 30 Order; (vii) it is vague, 

ambiguous, overbroad, and unduly burdensome as to time; (viii) to the extent the Interrogatory 

seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege, work product doctrine, and/or other 

privileges recognized under the constitutional, statutory, and decisional law of the United States 

or the State of Nevada; and (ix) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks confidential, private, or 

sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third party’s contractual, constitutional, 

statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection, including, but not limited to, 26 U.S.C. 

§§ 6713 and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-client privilege, and/or AICPA 

professional standards. 

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

supplement its responses, PwC responds as follows: 

PwC personnel provided tax advice to Midcoast in connection with the Bishop 

Transaction.  The PwC personnel who performed work in connection with such advice included:  

Gary Wilcox, Co-Leader, Washington National Tax – M&A Practice; Bob Whitten, Partner; 

Dennis McErlean, Partner; and Thomas Palmisano, Senior Manager. 

PwC personnel provided tax advice to the Marshalls in connection with the Marshall 

Transaction. The PwC personnel who performed work in connection with such advice included:  

Mike Weber, Partner; Patricia Pellervo, Partner, Washington National Tax; Dan Mendelson, 

Partner, Tax Quality and Risk Management; William Galanis, Partner Washington National Tax; 

and John Dempsey, Manager.  

INTERROGATORY NO. 5: 

Identify all current or former employees of PwC who have been interviewed or deposed or 

testified at trial, in a hearing, or before a grand jury, in which the Midco strategy or a Midco 

Transaction was mentioned, referred to, described, or inquired about.  Please include the name of 

the witness, each date they testified, and the nature of such proceeding.  

AA 000594
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RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 

following grounds:  (i) the word “all” renders the Interrogatory overbroad, unduly burdensome, 

unreasonable, and oppressive; (ii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase 

“interviewed or deposed or testified at trial, in a hearing, or before a grand jury”; (iii) it is vague, 

ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “in which the Midco strategy or a Midco Transaction 

was mentioned, referred to, described, or inquired about”; (iv) it is vague, ambiguous, and 

overbroad as to the phrase “nature of such proceeding”; (v) to the extent the Interrogatory 

contains multiple separate and distinct interrogatories; (vi) to the extent the defined terms 

“Midco” and “Midco Transaction” call for a legal conclusion and seek information not relevant to 

the subject matter involved in this action and goes beyond the allegations in the Complaint and/or 

is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence; (vii) to the extent the 

Interrogatory seeks information beyond the scope of the May 30 Order; (viii) it is vague, 

ambiguous, overbroad, and unduly burdensome as to time; (ix) to the extent the Interrogatory 

seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege, work product doctrine, and/or other 

privileges recognized under the constitutional, statutory, and decisional law of the United States 

or the State of Nevada; and (x) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks confidential, private, or 

sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third party’s contractual, constitutional, statutory, 

or common law right of privacy or protection, including, but not limited to, 26 U.S.C. §§ 6713 

and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-client privilege, and/or AICPA professional 

standards. 

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

supplement its responses, PwC responds as follows: 

 Patricia Pellervo was deposed in Marshall et al. v. C.I.R., Nos. 27241-11 et al. 

(U.S. Tax Court) on March 4, 2014. 

 John Dempsey was deposed in Marshall et al. v. C.I.R., Nos. 27241-11 et al. (U.S. 

AA 000595
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Tax Court) on February 26, 2014 and March 13, 2014. 

 John Dempsey testified at trial in Marshall et al. v. C.I.R., Nos. 27241-11 et al. 

(U.S. Tax Court) on April 9, 2014 and December 11, 2014. 

 Mike Weber testified at trial in Marshall et al. v. C.I.R., Nos. 27241-11 et al. (U.S. 

Tax Court) on December 11, 2014. 

 Dan Mendelson testified at trial in Marshall et al. v. C.I.R., Nos. 27241-11 et al. 

(U.S. Tax Court) on December 12, 2014. 

 Gary Wilcox was interviewed by the IRS in In the matter of: K-Pipe Group Inc. 

and Subsidiaries, the IRS’s examination of the Bishop Transaction, on April 29, 

2004. 

 Gary Wilcox was deposed in Enbridge Energy Co., Inc. v. U.S., Case No. H-06-

0657 (S.D. Tex.) on February 19, 2007. 

 Thomas Palmisano was deposed in Enbridge Energy Co., Inc. v. U.S., Case No. H-

06-0657 (S.D. Tex.) on February 22, 2007. 

 Richard Stovsky was deposed in Tricarichi v. C.I.R., No. 23630-12 (U.S. Tax 

Court) on August 6, 2013. 

 Richard Stovsky testified at trial in Tricarichi v. C.I.R., No. 23630-12 (U.S. Tax 

Court) on June 11, 2014. 

 Tim Lohnes was deposed in Tricarichi v. C.I.R., No. 23630-12 (U.S. Tax Court) 

on December 10, 2013. 

 Tim Lohnes testified at trial in Tricarichi v. C.I.R., No. 23630-12 (U.S. Tax Court) 

on June 11, 2014. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 6: 

Identify all employees of PwC who personally participated in a Midco Transaction and 

who attempted to or in fact participated in an Internal Revenue Service amnesty program, such as 

that described in IRS Announcement 2002-2, or amended their returns to abandon the tax 

implications of the Midco Transaction on those returns.  

AA 000596
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RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 

following grounds:  (i) the word “all” renders the Interrogatory overbroad, unduly burdensome, 

unreasonable, and oppressive; (ii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase 

“personally participated in a Midco Transaction”; (iii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as 

to the phrase “who attempted to or in fact participated in an Internal Revenue Service amnesty 

program” (iv) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “or amended their returns to 

abandon the tax implications of the Midco Transactions on those returns”; (v) to the extent the 

Interrogatory contains multiple separate and distinct interrogatories; (vi) to the extent it seeks 

information not relevant to the subject matter involved in this action and goes beyond the 

allegations in the Complaint and/or is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence; (vii) to the extent the defined term “Midco Transaction” calls for a legal 

conclusion and seeks information not relevant to the subject matter involved in this action and 

goes beyond the allegations in the Complaint and/or is not reasonably calculated to lead to the 

discovery of admissible evidence; (viii) to the extent it seeks information beyond the scope of the 

May 30 Order; (ix) to the extent it assumes facts not in evidence; (x) it is vague, ambiguous, 

overbroad, and unduly burdensome as to time; (xi) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks 

information protected by the attorney-client privilege, work product doctrine, and/or other 

privileges recognized under the constitutional, statutory, and decisional law of the United States 

or the State of Nevada; and (xii) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks confidential, private, or 

sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third party’s contractual, constitutional, 

statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection, including, but not limited to, 26 U.S.C. 

§§ 6713 and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-client privilege, and/or AICPA 

professional standards. 

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

supplement its responses, PwC responds as follows:  PwC does not possess information or 

knowledge responsive to this Interrogatory. 

AA 000597
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INTERROGATORY NO. 7: 

Identify all persons or entities (including governmental entities) to whom You have 

produced documents concerning the Midco concept or strategy, Midco Transaction(s) or the 

Fortrend Transaction, or to whom You otherwise responded to requests for information, 

summons, subpoenas, or regulatory inquiries concerning same. 

RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 

following grounds:  (i) the word “all” renders the Interrogatory overbroad, unduly burdensome, 

unreasonable, and oppressive; (ii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase 

“Midco concept or strategy”; (iii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “to 

whom You otherwise responded to requests for information, summons, subpoenas, or regulatory 

inquiries concerning same”; (iv) to the extent the Interrogatory contains multiple separate and 

distinct interrogatories; (v) to the extent the defined terms “Midco,” “Midco Transactions,” and 

“Fortrend Transaction” call for a legal conclusion and seek information not relevant to the 

subject matter involved in this action and goes beyond the allegations in the Complaint and/or is 

not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence; (vi) to the extent the 

Interrogatory seeks information beyond the scope of the May 30 Order; (vii) it is vague, 

ambiguous, overbroad, and unduly burdensome as to time; (viii) to the extent the Interrogatory 

seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege, work product doctrine, and/or other 

privileges recognized under the constitutional, statutory, and decisional law of the United States 

or the State of Nevada; and (ix) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks confidential, private, or 

sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third party’s contractual, constitutional, 

statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection, including, but not limited to, 26 U.S.C. 

§§ 6713 and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-client privilege, and/or AICPA 

professional standards. 

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

AA 000598
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supplement its responses, PwC responds as follows:  PwC has produced documents concerning 

transactions that may be the same as, or substantially similar to, the transactions described in 

IRS Notice 2001-16 to government entities including the IRS, the California Franchise Tax 

Board (“CFTB”), the Illinois Department of Revenue, and the New York State Department of 

Taxation and Finance.  

INTERROGATORY NO. 8: 

Identify and describe any governmental investigation or inquiries of any kind into Your 

use of, promotion of, advice regarding, or role in any Midco Transaction. 

RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 

following grounds: (i) the word “any” renders the Interrogatory overbroad, unduly burdensome, 

unreasonable, and oppressive; (ii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase 

“describe”; (iii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “governmental 

investigation or inquiries of any kind”; (iv) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the 

phrase “use of, promotion of, advice regarding, or role in”; (v) to the extent the phrase “Midco 

Transaction” calls for a legal conclusion and seeks information not relevant to the subject matter 

involved in this action and goes beyond the allegations in the Complaint and/or is not reasonably 

calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence; (vi) to the extent the Interrogatory 

seeks information beyond the scope of the May 30 Order; (vii) the phrase “use of, promotion of, 

advice regarding, or role in” assumes facts not in evidence; (viii) it is vague, ambiguous, 

overbroad, and unduly burdensome as to time;  (ix) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks 

information protected by the attorney-client privilege, work product doctrine, and/or other 

privileges recognized under the constitutional, statutory, and decisional law of the United States 

or the State of Nevada; and (x) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks confidential, private, or 

sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third party’s contractual, constitutional, 

statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection, including, but not limited to, 26 U.S.C. 

AA 000599
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§§ 6713 and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-client privilege, and/or AICPA 

professional standards. 

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

supplement its responses, PwC responds as follows:  

From July 2002 to August 2002, PwC corresponded with the IRS regarding the IRS’s 

request for information concerning transactions that are the same, or substantially similar, to 

those described in IRS Notice 2001-16.  On October 8, 2002, PwC received a summons from the 

IRS seeking a list of investors in transactions that were the same as or substantially similar to 

those described in IRS Notice 2001-16 “in which PwC was an organizer, seller, advisor, or 

arranged for the client’s/investor’s participation.”  PwC responded to the summons on October 

17, 2002 and March 4, 2004, providing the names of six transactions that may be the same as or 

substantially similar to those described in IRS Notice 2001-16, and the names, addresses and 

Taxpayer Identification Numbers (“TINs”) of known participants in such transactions.  None of 

the submissions to the IRS included the transaction at issue in this action. 

Beginning in late 2006, the CFTB and PwC began corresponding and meeting regarding 

the production of information and documents by PwC to the CFTB regarding any listed 

transactions, including transactions described in IRS Notice 2001-16, that PwC previously 

registered with the IRS under Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) section 6112.  PwC identified two 

transactions that PwC had previously registered with the IRS as transactions that may be the 

same as, or substantially similar to, the transactions described in Notice 2001-16, and provided 

documents concerning those transactions.  This submission did not include the transaction at 

issue in this action.  In May 2007, the CFTB subsequently issued a summons and a series of 

Information Document Requests (“IDRs”) seeking documents concerning PwC’s “actions and 

activities” in various listed transactions, including transactions that were the same as, or 

substantially similar to, the transactions described in IRS Notice 2001-16, whether or not PwC 

had previously registered those transactions with the IRS.  On February 8, 2008, PwC provided a 

list of the names of six transactions that may be the same as or substantially similar to those 

described in IRS Notice 2001-16, and the names, addresses and TINs of known participants in 

AA 000600
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such transactions.  On September 17, 2008, October 6, 2008, and October 1, 2009, PwC 

produced documents concerning the transactions listed in the February 8, 2008 submission.  

None of the submissions to the CFTB included the transaction at issue in this action. 

In December 2004, pursuant to section 35 ILCS 5/1405.6 of the Illinois Income Tax Act, 

PwC provided the Illinois Department of Revenue a list and description of listed transactions 

with an Illinois nexus, that PwC previously registered with the IRS under IRC section 6112.  As 

part of this submission, PwC identified one transaction that may be the same as or substantially 

similar to transactions described in IRS Notice 2001-16, and provided documents concerning 

that transaction.  None of the submissions to the Illinois Department of Revenue included the 

transaction at issue in this action.   

In July 2006, pursuant to section 25(b) of the New York Consolidated Laws, Tax Laws,  

PwC provided the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance a list and description of 

listed transactions that PwC previously registered with the IRS under IRC section 6112.  As part 

of this submission, PwC identified two transaction that may be the same as or substantially 

similar to transactions described in IRS Notice 2001-16, and provided documents concerning 

those transactions.   None of the submissions to the New York State Department of Taxation and 

Finance included the transaction at issue in this action. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 9: 

Identify and describe any communications with the IRS or any other agency relating to 

Your use, promotion of, advice regarding, or role in any Midco Transaction.  

RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 

following grounds: (i) the word “any” renders the Interrogatory overbroad, unduly burdensome, 

unreasonable, and oppressive; (ii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase 

“describe”; (iii) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “other agency”; (iv) it is 

vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “use, promotion of, advice regarding, or role 

in”; (v) to the extent the phrase “Midco Transaction” calls for a legal conclusion and seeks 

AA 000601
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information not relevant to the subject matter involved in this action and goes beyond the 

allegations in the Complaint and/or is not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 

admissible evidence; (vi) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks information beyond the scope of 

the May 30 Order; (vii) the phrase “use, promotion of, advice regarding, or role in” assumes 

facts not in evidence; (viii) it is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and unduly burdensome as to 

time; (ix) to the extent the Interrogatory seeks information protected by the attorney-client 

privilege, work product doctrine, and/or other privileges recognized under the constitutional, 

statutory, and decisional law of the United States or the State of Nevada; and (x) to the extent the 

Interrogatory seeks confidential, private, or sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third 

party’s contractual, constitutional, statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection, 

including, but not limited to, 26 U.S.C. §§ 6713 and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-

client privilege, and/or AICPA professional standards.   

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

supplement its responses, PwC responds as follows:  

From July 2002 to August 2002, PwC corresponded with the IRS regarding the IRS’s 

request for information concerning transactions that are the same, or substantially similar, to 

those described in IRS Notice 2001-16.  On October 8, 2002, PwC received a summons from the 

IRS seeking a list of investors in transactions that were the same as or substantially similar to 

those described in IRS Notice 2001-16 “in which PwC was an organizer, seller, advisor, or 

arranged for the client’s/investor’s participation.”  PwC responded to the summons on October 

17, 2002 and March 4, 2004, providing the names of six transactions that may be the same as or 

substantially similar to those described in IRS Notice 2001-16, and the names, addresses and 

TINs of known participants in such transactions.  None of the submissions to the IRS included 

the transaction at issue in this action. 

Beginning in late 2006, the CFTB and PwC began corresponding and meeting regarding 

the production of information and documents by PwC to the CFTB regarding any listed 

transactions, including transactions described in IRS Notice 2001-16, that PwC previously 

registered with the IRS under IRC section 6112.  PwC identified two transactions that PwC had 
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previously registered with the IRS as transactions that may be the same as, or substantially 

similar to, the transactions described in Notice 2001-16, and provided documents concerning 

those transactions.  This submission did not include the transaction at issue in this action.  In 

May 2007, the CFTB subsequently issued a summons and a series of IDRs seeking documents 

concerning PwC’s “actions and activities” in various listed transactions, including transactions 

that were the same as, or substantially similar to, the transactions described in IRS Notice 2001-

16, whether or not PwC had previously registered those transactions with the IRS.  On February 

8, 2008, PwC provided a list of the names of six transactions that may be the same as or 

substantially similar to those described in IRS Notice 2001-16, and the names, addresses and 

TINs of known participants in such transactions.   On September 17, 2008, October 6, 2008, and 

October 1, 2009, PwC produced documents concerning the transactions listed in the February 8, 

2008 submission.  None of the submissions to the CFTB included the transaction at issue in this 

action. 

In December 2004, pursuant to section 35 ILCS 5/1405.6 of the Illinois Income Tax Act, 

PwC provided the Illinois Department of Revenue a list and description of listed transactions 

with an Illinois nexus, that PwC previously registered with the IRS under IRC section 6112.  As 

part of this submission, PwC identified one transaction that may be the same as or substantially 

similar to transactions described in IRS Notice 2001-16, and provided documents concerning 

that transaction.  None of the submissions to the Illinois Department of Revenue included the 

transaction at issue in this action.   

In July 2006, pursuant to section 25(b) of the New York Consolidated Laws, Tax Laws,  

PwC provided the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance a list and description of 

listed transactions that PwC previously registered with the IRS under IRC section 6112.  As part 

of this submission, PwC identified two transactions that may be the same as or substantially 

similar to transactions described in IRS Notice 2001-16, and provided documents concerning 

those transactions.  None of the submissions to the New York State Department of Taxation and 

Finance included the transaction at issue in this action. 

PwC also produced documents to the IRS in regards to the transactions at issue in 

Marshall et al. v. CIR Nos. 27241-11 et al. (U.S. Tax Court), Enbridge Energy Co., Inc. v. U.S., 
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Case No. H-06-0657 (S.D. Tex.), and Tricarichi v. C.I.R., No. 23630-12 (U.S. Tax Court), and 

former and current PwC individuals provided testimony as stated in Response to Interrogatory 

No. 6. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 10: 

Have you complied with AICPA Statement on Standards for Tax Services No. 6, with 

respect to the Fortrend Transaction?  State the basis for Your answer. 

RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 

following grounds: (i) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “complied”; (ii) to 

the extent it calls for a legal conclusion; (iv) to the extent it assumes facts not in evidence; (iii) to 

the extent it seeks information not relevant to the subject matter involved in this action and goes 

beyond the allegations in the Complaint and/or is not reasonably calculated to lead to the 

discovery of admissible evidence; (iv) to the extent it seeks information beyond the scope of the 

May 30 Order; (v) it is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and unduly burdensome as to time; (vi) to 

the extent the Interrogatory seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege, work 

product doctrine, and/or other privileges recognized under the constitutional, statutory, and 

decisional law of the United States or the State of Nevada; and (vii) to the extent the Interrogatory 

seeks confidential, private, or sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third party’s 

contractual, constitutional, statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection, including, but 

not limited to, 26 U.S.C. §§ 6713 and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-client privilege, 

and/or AICPA professional standards.   

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

supplement its responses, PwC responds as follows:  

From April 2003, when Plaintiff first engaged PwC, through June 25, 2012, when the IRS 

issued a Notice of Liability for Plaintiff's role in the Fortrend Transaction, PwC at all times 

complied with AICPA Statement on Standards for Tax Services No. 6, with respect to the 
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Fortrend Transaction. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 11: 

Have you complied with Section 10.21 of Treasury Circular No. 230, with respect to the 

Fortrend Transaction?  State the basis for Your answer. 

RESPONSE: 

PwC incorporates by reference its General Objections and Objections to Definitions and 

Instructions as though fully set forth herein.  PwC further objects to this Interrogatory on the 

following grounds: (i) it is vague, ambiguous, and overbroad as to the phrase “complied”; (ii) to 

the extent it calls for a legal conclusion; (iv) to the extent it assumes facts not in evidence; (iii) to 

the extent it seeks information not relevant to the subject matter involved in this action and goes 

beyond the allegations in the Complaint and/or is not reasonably calculated to lead to the 

discovery of admissible evidence; (iv) to the extent it seeks information beyond the scope of the 

May 30 Order; (v) it is vague, ambiguous, overbroad, and unduly burdensome as to time; (vi) to 

the extent the Interrogatory seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege, work 

product doctrine, and/or other privileges recognized under the constitutional, statutory, and 

decisional law of the United States or the State of Nevada; and (vii) to the extent the Interrogatory 

seeks confidential, private, or sensitive information subject to PwC’s and/or a third party’s 

contractual, constitutional, statutory, or common law right of privacy or protection, including, but 

not limited to, 26 U.S.C. §§ 6713 and 7216, and any other applicable accountant-client privilege, 

and/or AICPA professional standards.    

Subject to and without waiving any of its objections, without conceding it has an 

evidentiary burden that belongs to Plaintiff as a matter of law, and without waiving its right to 

supplement its responses, PwC responds as follows:  

From April 2003, when Plaintiff first engaged PwC, through June 25, 2012, when the IRS 

issued a Notice of Liability for Plaintiff's role in the Fortrend Transaction, PwC at all times 

complied with Section 10.21 of Treasury Circular No. 230, with respect to the Fortrend 

Transaction.  
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Dated:  August 23, 2017    SNELL & WILMER L.L.P. 
 
 

By: /s/ Patrick G. Byrne     
Patrick G. Byrne, Esq. 

        3883 Howard Hughes Pkwy. #1100 

        Las Vegas, NV 89169 

        Attorneys for Defendant 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I, the undersigned, declare under penalty of perjury, that I am over the age of eighteen 

(18) years, and I am not a party to, nor interested in, this action.  On this date, I caused to be 

served a true and correct copy of the foregoing:  PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP’S 

AMENDED RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFF’S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES, by the 

method indicated: 

  

 i) BY FAX:  by transmitting via facsimile the document(s) listed above to 

the fax number(s) set forth below on this date before 5:00 p.m. pursuant to EDCR Rule 

7.26(a).  A printed transmission record is attached to the file copy of this document(s). 

 ii) BY U.S. MAIL:  by placing the document(s) listed above in a sealed 

envelope with postage thereon fully prepaid, in the United States mail at Las Vegas, 

Nevada addressed as set forth below. 

 iii) BY OVERNIGHT MAIL:  by causing document(s) to be picked up by 

an overnight delivery service company for delivery to the addressee(s) on the next 

business day. 

 iv) BY PERSONAL DELIVERY:  by causing personal delivery 

by                     , a messenger service with which this firm maintains an account, of the 

document(s) listed above to the person(s) at the address(es) set forth below. 

 v) BY ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION:  submitted to the above-entitled 

Court for electronic filing and service upon the Court’s Service List for the above-

referenced case. 

X vi) BY EMAIL:  by emailing a PDF of the document listed above to the 

email addresses of the individual(s) listed below. 

 

and addressed to the following: 

Todd W. Prall, Esq. 

10080 West Alta Drive, Suite 200 

Las Vegas, NV 89145 

tprall@hutchlegal.com 

 

Scott F. Hessell, Esq. 

Thomas D. Brooks, Esq. 

SPERLING & SLATER, P.C. 

55 West Monroe, Suite 3200 

Chicago, IL 60603 

shessell@sperling-law.com 

tbrooks@sperling-law.com 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 

 

Dated:  August 23, 2017 

       /s/ Winston P. Hsiao_______________ 

       Winston P. Hsiao 
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1 Exhibit 88-J toward the end of your binder there and

2 tell us if you recognize that document.

3      A    Yeah.  88-J is the check that Cellnet

4 wrote -- Westside wrote to the IRS on November 18th,

5 of 2003 --

6      Q    So that's --

7      A    -- for $3.1 million.

8      Q    -- the second payment you wrote?

9      A    The second time we paid it.  It's the same

10 payment, but we stopped payment on the first check

11 and sent them this one.

12      Q    Fair enough.  Okay.

13      A    Okay.

14      Q    And I'll come back with a couple of

15 questions on that.  But let me just go back and still

16 talk about kind of housekeeping at Westside as you're

17 getting ready for the stock sale.

18           Did Westside have any receivables on its

19 balance sheet during this kind of summer of '03 time

20 period?

21      A    It did have receivables, yes.

22      Q    What happened to those?

23      A    Well, initially Fortrend was interested in

24 buying the receivables as well as the company as well

25 as the stock.  And at some point, they decided that
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1 didn't tell me anything else.

2      Q    Okay.  So you had some understanding they

3 knew what they were talking about when they were

4 talking to you about buying --

5      A    Oh, yeah.  Absolutely.

6           MR. DESMOND:  How are we doing on time,

7 Your Honor?  I'm fine to keep going through.

8           THE COURT:  I thought we might break for

9 lunch maybe 12:30, quarter of 1.  Whenever would be a

10 good breaking point for you.

11           MR. DESMOND:  Okay.  I may even be done

12 with Mr. Tricarichi by then so.

13           THE COURT:  Ms. Lampert, would it be okay

14 to --

15           MS. LAMPERT:  Yes, Your Honor.

16           THE COURT:  -- run a little bit late and

17 then try to finish up before lunch?

18           MS. LAMPERT:  To finish up his direct and

19 then --

20           THE COURT:  Yeah.

21           MS. LAMPERT:  -- do cross after lunch, Your

22 Honor?

23           THE COURT:  Yeah.

24           MS. LAMPERT:  That would work for us.

25           THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, let's shoot for
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1 they really didn't want to pay us anything for the

2 receivables, anything, you know, substantial for the

3 receivables.

4           So we decided when we formed LXV -- decided

5 to put the receivables into LXV.

6      Q    And what was -- what were they offering to

7 pay you?  Why didn't you want to take that?

8      A    Nothing.  Like a penny, a penny a dollar or

9 something like that, or half a penny a dollar or

10 something like that.

11      Q    And you thought they were worth more than

12 that?

13      A    Oh, yeah.  We actually collected a lot more

14 than that.

15      Q    We being?

16      A    We being LXV.

17      Q    Okay.  But there were discussions with

18 Fortrend about that issue?

19      A    Yeah.  That's when we first started with

20 that.

21      Q    And did those discussions tell you or

22 inform you in any way about Fortrend and its

23 business?

24      A    No.  I mean, other than they were in the

25 business of buying receivables cheap.  That -- that
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1 that.

2           MR. DESMOND:  Okay.

3           BY MR. DESMOND:

4      Q    Going back, then, to the Fortrend offer,

5 Mr. Tricarichi, we've talked about the $65 million

6 and the tax consequences surrounding that

7 consideration between PWC.

8           Did you have any understanding as to what

9 was going to happen to the taxes, whatever that

10 amount might be, that Westside might owe?

11      A    Fortrend was going to make sure that the

12 taxes got satisfied.

13      Q    Do you know how they were going to make

14 sure the taxes got satisfied?

15      A    No.  That was why I hired the outside

16 experts.

17      Q    Okay.  Did your advisers look into that for

18 you?

19      A    I believe they did.  To some -- to some

20 degree I think PWC did.

21      Q    Okay.  And you mentioned earlier this --

22 well, let me come back to that in just a second.  But

23 were the specific terms in Exhibit 1-J, the stock

24 purchase agreement, that addressed the taxes that you

25 recall?
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1 your understanding that Fortrend was going to pay

2 Westside's corporate income tax liability; is that

3 correct?

4      A    That's correct.  That's contractual in the

5 purchase agreement.

6      Q    But according to the various sales

7 calculations spreadsheets that we've been looking at,

8 the one in Exhibit J (sic), page 42, and the one on

9 Exhibit 23-J, the Fortrend premium, the amount of

10 cash that Fortrend received was approximately $5.3

11 million, correct?

12      A    The amount of cash they received was

13 approximately $40 million.  If you're trying to net

14 that out, I don't -- I'm not following you.

15      Q    They received -- okay.  So there was $40

16 million is what you're saying and then they paid back

17 Rabobank, correct, for 29 --

18      A    I can't speak to that.  I don't -- I'm not

19 privy to whether they paid back Rabobank or not.  I

20 think they did, but that wasn't my respon- -- I was

21 out of the -- I was out of the deal by the time that

22 that happened.

23      Q    How did you think was -- how did you think

24 Fortrend was going to pay for the taxes of Westside?

25      A    Well, my understanding was they had some
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1      Q    And what did they say?

2      A    Well, part of it was proprietary.  They

3 weren't telling us what they were going to do as far

4 as minimizing the tax goes.  They had a couple of

5 options.  I think -- I think PWC looked at one of

6 them.

7           But we had nothing in the purchase

8 agreement that spoke to a specific thing that they

9 were going to do after they purchased the company.

10 There was nothing -- all -- the only thing we had in

11 the agreement was they were going to satisfy the tax

12 obligation of Westside.

13      Q    Okay.

14      A    Okay.  They didn't say how they were going

15 to do it.  They just said they were going to do it.

16 And we had a lot of reps and warrants to that effect.

17      Q    Thank you.  Can you turn to Exhibit 26-J,

18 please?

19      A    26-J, got it.

20      Q    This is the letter of intent from Nob Hill

21 Holdings to you.

22      A    Yes.

23      Q    And Nob Hill Holdings is the acquisition

24 company that Fortrend used; is that correct?

25      A    That's my understanding.
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1 tax reduction process that they were going to do.

2      Q    A tax reduction process?

3      A    Yeah.  They were -- that was their thing.

4 They were going to reduce the tax to the point where

5 they would pay it.

6      Q    That was -- when you say that was their

7 thing, what do you --

8      A    It was never my understanding that they

9 were going to pay $16 million in tax.  It was my

10 understanding that they were going to pay some number

11 between $5 million or less in tax.

12           But how they got to that point, I had no

13 understanding of how they were getting to that point.

14 Their business was bad debt.  And my understanding

15 was that they were going to somehow use bad debt to

16 lower the tax obligation.  And that's the extent of

17 my knowledge as to how they did whatever they did.

18           That's why I hired Hahn Loesure and that's

19 why I hired PWC was to figure that out, to look into

20 that and figure it out.

21      Q    Okay.  And did you talk to Hahn Loesure and

22 PWC, the advisers that you had at Hahn Loesure and

23 PWC, about what they thought about the plan that

24 Fortrend had to minimize the tax?

25      A    Yes.
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1      Q    And if you'll turn to -- let's first turn

2 to page 3 of that exhibit, please.

3      A    Okay.

4      Q    And if you'll look down at Paragraph 5, it

5 says:  Purchaser will have secured financing for the

6 stock purchase price.

7           What was your understanding of that

8 condition precedent?

9      A    They were borrowing money.

10      Q    And when you say they were borrowing money,

11 who are you referring to?

12      A    Well, whoever the purchaser was.  If it was

13 Fortrend or if was Nob Hill --

14      Q    Okay.

15      A    -- whoever it was was borrowing the money,

16 securing the financing to be able to pay me the money

17 for my stock.

18      Q    Okay.  So Fortrend was securing the money

19 for financing?

20      A    That's what Paragraph 5 says, yeah.

21      Q    Okay.  And can you turn to page 4 of the

22 letter of intent where it says Indemnifications?

23      A    Yeah.

24      Q    This paragraph talks about different

25 indemnifications that will be given, but it
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1 me.  It referred to some section of the IRS Code, but

2 other than that I don't know.

3           THE COURT:  You mean before having that

4 struck out you didn't ask?

5           THE WITNESS:  What I asked -- the question

6 I asked Folkman was what -- what's a reportable

7 transaction?

8           And he said there are certain types of

9 transactions that have to be reported to the

10 Government when you file your tax return.  He said

11 this isn't one of them.

12           And I said, Okay.  Fine.  And then when I

13 saw this on the PWC engagement letter, basically,

14 what I said to PWC is, I want you to make that

15 determination as to whether this is a reportable

16 transaction.  But they did as well and they said it

17 wasn't a reportable transaction, too.  So I don't

18 think anybody has yet said that it was a reportable

19 transaction, even them.

20           THE COURT:  Okay.  I believe that at some

21 point, and I guess this is -- is it true that at some

22 point a fee of a million dollars was paid to Midcoast

23 even though you turned down their offer?

24           THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  We found that out -- I

25 don't know if Ms. McCaskill told us that or Candace

195

1           THE COURT:  And they were computed to be

2 about 16.8 million?

3           THE WITNESS:  Well, that's what our guys

4 computed --

5           THE COURT:  Right.

6           THE COURT:  -- them to be.

7           THE COURT:  So that would mean that it had

8 a shareholder equity of 23.7 million, give or take?

9           THE WITNESS:  If -- assuming that there

10 were no other deductions or setoffs or anything else.

11           THE COURT:  Well, I think they had to be

12 taken into account.  I think our guys had plugged in

13 a small bad debt deduction and other stuff and they

14 determined that your liability -- Westside's

15 liability would have been 16.8 million.

16           THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  If we would have -- if

17 we would --

18           THE COURT:  If you had, right.

19           THE WITNESS:  -- if we would have done it,

20 yes, it would have been that.

21           THE COURT:  Now, why did you think that

22 Fortrend was willing to pay you 34.6 million, which

23 is 11 million more than the value of the company?

24           THE WITNESS:  Because we believed that they

25 had some type of strategy for reducing the $16
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1 over there told us that.  But when they interviewed

2 me in November of 2007, I was told that Fortrend --

3 we were always wondering why Midcoast dropped out.

4           And I was told that Fortrend claimed a

5 million dollar deduction on one of their tax returns.

6 And after they investigated it, they determined that

7 the million dollars was paid to Midcoast to get out

8 of the deal.

9           THE COURT:  Oh, I see.  So nobody from your

10 side paid Midcoast?

11           THE WITNESS:  Oh, no, no, no, no, no, no.

12 Fortrend paid Midcoast to back away from the deal.

13 Matter of fact --

14           THE COURT:  And you learned that relatively

15 recently?

16           THE WITNESS:  I learned that in 2000- --

17 well, I learned that, yeah, way after the transaction

18 was done.  If I would have known that, you know,

19 could a, would a, should a.

20           THE COURT:  Okay.  And just a couple

21 questions about the purchase price for Westside.  As

22 I understand it at the point the stock sale closed,

23 Westside had no assets except about $40.5 million of

24 cash and it had tax liabilities?

25           THE WITNESS:  Correct.
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1 million down to some lower number.  And we were told

2 that they were in the debt collection business.  And

3 I know a little bit about bad debt.  You know, I

4 collected a lot of bad debt in my time and I got

5 stuck with a lot of bad debt, too.  So I know that on

6 many occasions, bad debt is deductible.

7           So, you know, and that's -- again, that's

8 the reason why I hired PWC and why I hired Hahn

9 Loesure was to basically figure that out.  Tell me

10 what -- make sure that this is okay, you know what I

11 mean?

12           THE COURT:  You know, a lot of times

13 companies will pay premiums to buy ongoing companies

14 with good technology.  But why would a company pay an

15 $11 million premium to buy a company whose only asset

16 was cash?

17           THE WITNESS:  Well, I know that if, for

18 example -- and I'll give you an example.  If I had a

19 lot of loss trapped somewhere and I wanted to cash

20 out my loss, that would be a way to do it.

21           THE COURT:  So you'd buy a tax liability,

22 you're saying?

23           THE WITNESS:  Basically.  I don't know how

24 that would work technically to be able to make it

25 work.  But that would -- that would certainly allow
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1 you to do that.

2           THE COURT:  And why did Fortrend tell you

3 that they wanted to buy your company?

4           THE WITNESS:  Why -- they never told me why

5 they wanted to buy it.  They just came to me and said

6 we want to buy your company.  My guess was that they

7 were looking for a way to cash out losses.

8           THE COURT:  And I think you said your

9 understanding was that Nob Hill, the acquisition

10 vehicle, was going -- initially you thought was going

11 to borrow all the money to acquire Westside.

12           THE WITNESS:  That was my understanding

13 originally, yeah.  I didn't find out about the 5

14 million until this case.

15           THE COURT:  But Westside's only asset was

16 cash.  Why would somebody want to borrow $34 million

17 in cash to acquire cash?

18           THE WITNESS:  Well, they were getting more

19 cash than they were borrowing.  They were getting 5-

20 some million dollars more --

21           THE COURT:  And they had a --

22           THE WITNESS:  -- than they were borrowing.

23           THE COURT:  -- $16 million tax liability --

24           THE WITNESS:  I understand.  But if they

25 could have reduced the $16 million tax liability to
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1 hired one of the largest accounting firms in the

2 country.  That's why I hired an accounting -- or a

3 law firm that I had been with for 20 years was to

4 look at this.  That's exactly why I did it.

5           Otherwise, I would have just -- if it

6 didn't seem fishy to me, I would have just done the

7 deal and I wouldn't have spent what I spent in terms

8 of analyzing the deal.

9           So, you know, you scratch your head and you

10 look and you say could a, would a, should a.  What --

11 what more could I have done to vet this deal?

12           I go to the largest -- one of the largest

13 accounting firms in the country, Big 4.  I go to my

14 lawyer for 20 years.  They both tell me it's a good

15 deal.  There's nothing wrong with it.  We don't see

16 any problem with it.

17           I'm not a tax guy.  Tax law is like Chinese

18 to me.  So when I go -- if I don't understand

19 something, I hire somebody that does.  And I did.

20 And not only did I hire one person, but I hired two

21 and I got the same response from both of them.

22           THE COURT:  Well, didn't PWC tell you that

23 the apparent plan by Nob Hill or Fortrend involved a

24 very aggressive tax strategy that's vulnerable to IRS

25 challenge?
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1 4, they would have been a million ahead and they

2 would have cashed out a million dollars' worth of

3 losses.

4           So it's not for me to explain.  I mean,

5 I'll try the best I can.  But I don't know what was

6 behind the door there.  I do know that people have

7 propriety strategies for dealing with hazardous

8 waste, for dealing asbestos removal.  And there are a

9 lot of situations where people buy companies that

10 have, for example, large obligations and will pay

11 more than what the obligation is because they have a

12 technology for reducing the obligation.

13           THE COURT:  Companies sometimes will write

14 off assets if I owned a company.  But writing up a

15 liability seems very unusual why you would -- you

16 would voluntarily incur a liability of $16 million.

17           THE WITNESS:  That's a question --

18           THE COURT:  If you only get $5 million for

19 it.

20           THE WITNESS:  That's a question that if

21 they were in this courtroom today, that would be a

22 question that you could ask them.

23           THE COURT:  But you're a sophisticated guy.

24 Didn't any of this seem fishy to you?

25           THE WITNESS:  That's why I -- that's why I
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1           THE WITNESS:  They didn't tell me that.

2            (Whereupon, page 202 and continuing are

3             attached under separate cover.)
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1                P R O C E E D I N G S

2                                         (9:00 a.m.)

3           THE COURT:  Good morning.  Please be

4 seated.

5           THE CLERK:  Resuming Docket Number 23630-

6 12, Michael A. Tricarichi, Transferee.

7           MS. LAMPERT:  Good morning, Your Honor.

8 Heather Lampert for Respondent.  Your Honor, this

9 morning we would like to call Richard Stovsky to the

10 stand.

11           THE COURT:  Please proceed.

12           WHEREUPON,

13                RICHARD STOVSKY

14           called as a witness, and having been first

15 duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

16           THE WITNESS:  Yes.

17           THE CLERK:  Please state your name and

18 address.

19           THE WITNESS:  Richard P. Stovsky.  My

20 business address is 200 Public Square, Cleveland,

21 Ohio 44194.

22           THE COURT:  Okay.  Before we get to you,

23 Mr. Stovsky, I'd like to remind you that you're not

24 allowed to discuss your testimony with anybody else,

25 any other witness in the case, until the case is
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1      Q    Yes, please.

2      A    I went to Ohio State University and majored

3 in accounting, and my degree was a bachelor of

4 science in business administration.

5           From there I went to Cleveland Marshall

6 College of Law, which is a law school at Cleveland

7 State University.  Received a law degree from

8 Cleveland State.

9      Q    Okay.  And do you have any professional

10 licenses?

11      A    Yes.  I'm a certified public accountant, a

12 member of the Ohio bar.

13      Q    Okay.  Any other licenses?

14      A    Other than associations, no.

15      Q    Okay.  And can you give me a brief history

16 of your work experience since you finished law

17 school?

18      A    Sure.  I graduated from law school in 1983,

19 and immediately after the bar started with Coopers

20 and Lybrand, which was the predecessor firm to

21 PricewaterhouseCoopers, one of the two firms.

22           I was admitted to the partnership in 1992.

23 I've always been in the tax area at

24 PricewatershouseCoopers.  I've been a tax partner

25 since 1992.
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1 completely complete.  Okay?

2           THE WITNESS:  Yes.

3           MS. LAMPERT:  And, Your Honor, before we

4 get started today, if I may.  Can I have

5 Mr. Stovsky's representatives that are here with him

6 today stand up and identify themselves so that we're

7 all clear on who is in the courtroom today?

8           THE COURT:  Yes.

9           MS. LAMPERT:  Thank you.

10           MR. MARKUS:  May it please the Court, Your

11 Honor, my name is Stephen Markus.  I'm a partner with

12 the Cleveland law firm of Ulmer and Berne.

13           MR. DEMARCO:  I'm Richard DeMarco from the

14 office of general counsel at PricewaterhouseCoopers.

15           THE COURT:  Thank you.

16           MS. LAMPERT:  Thank you, Your Honor.

17                DIRECT EXAMINATION

18           BY MS. LAMPERT:

19      Q    Mr. Stovsky, if it's okay with you, I'm

20 going to sit down while we do our examination today.

21 Can you hear me all right?

22      A    Yes.

23      Q    Okay.  Could you give me a brief

24 description of your educational background?

25      A    Sure.  Starting with college?
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1           I've had various additional roles in the

2 firm.  In addition to client service, I was the

3 market -- the Cleveland market leader for private

4 companies, the little market practice.  I was also

5 the Midwest region leader for middle market for PwC.

6 I was the office managing partner in Cleveland.  And

7 my current role is that I'm the United States private

8 company services leader for PricewaterhouseCoopers.

9           So my practice includes all -- services to

10 most of our private companies in the U.S., all

11 services to those companies.  And I'm also a member

12 of our firm's executive -- excuse me, extended

13 leadership team, which is one of the bodies that

14 governs the firm.

15      Q    I'm having a little problem hearing you.

16      A    Oh, I'm sorry.

17      Q    Do you think that you could speak into the

18 microphone?

19      A    Sure.  Is that better?

20           THE COURT:  That's better, yes.

21           THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.

22           BY MS. LAMPERT:

23      Q    That's perfect.  Thank you.  I want to make

24 sure that I hear everything that you say.

25           And in 2003, what were your
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1           THE WITNESS:  Correct.  The reason why

2 there's two pages, when we produced the file, we

3 produced every --

4           THE COURT:  Correct.

5           THE WITNESS:  -- piece of paper in the

6 file.  And there were two pieces, so I produced both.

7 But these -- but that's exactly right.

8           THE COURT:  And what's page 5?  Was that --

9 I suppose that was an internal note you made to

10 yourself --

11           THE WITNESS:  Yes.

12           THE COURT:  -- in the file?

13           THE WITNESS:  It was -- it was attached to

14 the page -- it was attached to -- I believe it was

15 attached to page -- this page 2 in the file.

16           THE COURT:  And so did -- and that means

17 that the way the opinion -- this was initially issued

18 was as we see on the first page --

19           THE WITNESS:  Correct.

20           THE COURT:  -- without the strikeout?

21           THE WITNESS:  Right.

22           THE COURT:  Thank you.

23           BY MS. LAMPERT:

24      Q    Can you please turn to Exhibit 25?  Can you

25 look through this exhibit for me, please, and when
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1 the top left:  "red comments," and then the second

2 note says: "pencil comments."  So I wrote in red and

3 pencil to identify different meetings that the notes

4 related to.

5      Q    And you said this was an internal

6 memorandum?

7      A    Yes.

8      Q    Was this memo given to anyone outside of

9 PwC?

10      A    Not to my knowledge, no.

11      Q    And did you draft all parts of this memo?

12      A    Yes.

13      Q    Did you draft all parts of this mem- -- did

14 you have any input from anybody else when you were

15 writing this memo?

16      A    Yes.  The entire -- anybody who worked on

17 the project.  I was collecting -- I was coordinating

18 the project and collecting information as we went

19 through the project.

20      Q    Okay.  Can you talk to me about who else

21 was on the project at PwC?

22      A    Sure.  The project had two main components:

23 a federal tax component and a state tax component.

24 The federal side, Tim Lohnes of our Washington

25 National Tax practice led the efforts relative to any
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1 you're done, let me know.

2      A    (Brief pause.)  Okay.

3      Q    Do you recognize this document?

4      A    I do.

5      Q    And can you identify this document for us?

6      A    Right.  This is my internal memo to the

7 file that I drafted throughout the transaction.

8      Q    And there is some handwriting on the first

9 five --

10      A    Right.

11      Q    -- pages of this exhibit.  Pages 1 through

12 5 there's handwriting.  Do you recognize this

13 handwriting?

14      A    I do.

15      Q    And whose handwriting is this?

16      A    It's mine.

17      Q    It's yours.  So these notes are your notes?

18      A    They are.

19      Q    And it appears that there might be two

20 different writing utensils that were used for some of

21 these notes.

22      A    Right.

23      Q    Does that -- is that indicative of

24 anything?

25      A    Well, if you refer to page 1, it says up in
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1 federal tax questions that we were addressing.

2           Tim is a subject-matter expert in our

3 Washington National Tax Practice and specializes in

4 other corporate tax provisions.  In addition, Tim

5 relied upon others with the National Tax.  But the

6 one that appears in this memo is Don Rooken

7 (phonetic).

8           Don was -- actually, Don had a career with

9 the Internal Revenue Service.  He was deputy chief

10 counsel with assistant commissioning.  When he went

11 -- when he left the service after years, he joined

12 our firm, and he also had input into this memo.

13           On the state and local side, Ray Turk,

14 who's a partner at PwC, is a state and local tax

15 partner.  And he and David Cook, who is a director at

16 our practice, and others, handled the state and local

17 side.

18           So there was input from numerous people

19 because our practice is to go to our experts.

20 Whenever we're doing really any project, we rely on

21 our experts.  And in this case, we relied on our

22 National Tax experts, as well as our state and local

23 experts.

24      Q    And you might have said this, but I missed

25 what you said.  On Don Rooken --
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1 was ordinary income issues, Section 269 issues, and

2 transferee liability issues, correct?

3      A    Correct.

4      Q    And I'd like to confirm that those are the

5 conclusions that were more-likely-than-not

6 qualifications, correct?

7      A    My -- my belief based on the file is that

8 all the conclusions that we drew were at the more-

9 likely-than-not level.

10      Q    So you drew a more-likely-than-not

11 conclusion regarding the deduction that the

12 corporation was taking for the write-off of the high

13 basis/low valued property that was to be contributed

14 to Westside?

15      A    Well, we didn't -- I don't believe we

16 looked at that issue -- we didn't look at that issue

17 as it relates to the buyer.

18      Q    Okay.

19      A    We were looking at it from Mr. Tricarichi's

20 perspective.

21      Q    Okay.  So your conclusion, then, is, with

22 respect to the fact that it's more likely than not,

23 that it was not Mr. Tricarichi's concern about the

24 result of that deduction because it would be a

25 corporate-level tax.  Is that the conclusion that

629

1 aware that this particular case started?

2      A    You mean other documents that are part of

3 the --

4      Q    No.  I think we've established that you've

5 looked at all of the documents in the PwC file and

6 that you've turned those over to the IRS.

7           I'm just wondering have you been provided

8 by any other parties other documents that you've

9 looked at?

10      A    The one document I can recall, in my

11 deposition, I was given a brochure that I had -- that

12 actually my attorney had shown me prior to the

13 deposition that I hadn't seen before, and then at the

14 deposition it was provided to me again.

15      Q    Okay.

16      A    I can't recall any other documents -- and

17 there were some letters as well that accompanied that

18 brochure that I hadn't seen prior to that timeframe.

19 But I can't recall other documents that I've seen

20 that relate to the file -- that are related to the

21 matter at all.

22      Q    Okay.

23           MS. LAMPERT:  May I have one moment, Your

24 Honor?

25           THE COURT:  You may.
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1 we're speaking about?

2      A    I believe so.

3      Q    Okay.  I just wanted to clarify that.

4 You've identified several documents today that have

5 been stipulated to by the parties as documents that

6 were contained in the PwC client file.

7      A    Uh-huh.

8      Q    Were there any documents that you looked at

9 in preparation for today's testimony that were not

10 turned over to the IRS?

11      A    From the PwC file?

12      Q    From either the PwC file or from another

13 source.

14      A    My understanding is anything -- any

15 document that we had was turned over.  I can't -- I

16 don't know about any other documents.  But anything

17 that we had in our file, I believe was turned over --

18      Q    Okay.

19      A    -- to the best of our ability, yes.

20      Q    Is there any document that you looked at

21 that was not contained in that PwC client file?

22      A    In preparation for today, not that I can

23 recall, no.

24      Q    Have you looked at any documents that were

25 not turned over since this case -- since you became
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1           MS. LAMPERT:  Your Honor, at this time we

2 have no further questions for this witness.

3           MR. BELL:  Cross?

4           THE COURT:  You may proceed.

5           MR. BELL:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Your

6 Honor, in light of what we've been doing in the past,

7 we prepared a binder of selected exhibits that are

8 already in the record of the case that are maybe a

9 little easier to handle than the one binder.  May I

10 approach and hand that to --

11           THE COURT:  You may.

12           MR. BELL:  Thank you.

13                CROSS-EXAMINATION

14           BY MR. BELL:

15      Q    Good morning, Mr. Stovsky.  My name is

16 Craig Bell and I'm one of the counsel for Mr. Michael

17 Tricarichi.

18           Before we get into some of the specific

19 documents that you've been questioned about today, I

20 want to talk a little bit more about your practical

21 work experience, not the formal education.  But when

22 you got to PricewaterhouseCoopers after graduating

23 law school, did you have the opportunity to work on

24 mergers and acquisitions (indiscernible)?

25      A    Yes.  Throughout my career.

AA 000677



Capital Reporting Company

(866) 448 - DEPO       www.CapitalReportingCompany.com         2014

651

1      Q    And the same with Sections 453 and 453A?

2      A    Right.  Those relate to installment sale.

3      Q    Right.

4      A    And the amount of installment sale that you

5 could defer for federal income tax purposes

6 (indiscernible) charge.  If my memory is correct, I

7 don't believe they -- I don't believe they entered

8 into an installment sale, but it was something that

9 might have been talked about earlier.

10      Q    Okay.  When you were getting this

11 memorandum more into a finalized state as you're

12 progressing, collecting facts, you're reaching out to

13 your subject-matter experts at National Office and

14 updating and refining this letter, or this

15 memorandum, did you have occasion, it would appear

16 from your handwritten notes, to then talk about some

17 of these issues with Mr. Folkman, who I believe is a

18 partner at Hahn Loesure in the tax area?

19      A    Right.  I don't -- you know, I don't recall

20 specific discussions, but I -- based on the file and

21 based on my overall memory, we had -- we did have

22 discussions with Mr. Folkman.

23      Q    Okay.  And I do see certain -- if I were

24 just looking down, for example, on pages 4 where you

25 have in the left margin:  Folkman concurs, Folkman
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1      A    I'm sorry.  Can you repeat the question?

2      Q    Did you reach the more-likely-than-not

3 standard with respect to each of the issues that

4 we've just gone through in that memo?

5      A    Yes.

6      Q    Okay.  And then, again, if I understand

7 that this is an internal memo, this was not provided

8 to Mr. Tricarichi, either Michael or Jim?

9      A    That's my recollection, correct.

10      Q    And if I recall from your testimony, you

11 knew Jim Tricarichi before you were engaged in this

12 transaction?

13      A    Yes.

14      Q    And how did you know Mr. Jim Tricarichi?

15      A    He -- initially I met Jim because he was

16 the CFO of one our clients at PwC, so he was

17 effectively a client, and then we had an ongoing

18 relationship from there.

19      Q    Okay.  And your -- if I -- again, just to

20 make sure the record is absolutely clear, with

21 respect to whether this transaction, in your eyes,

22 was a reportable transaction or listed transaction or

23 not, it was PwC's analysis that it was not; is that

24 correct?

25      A    That's right.
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1 concurs, did Folkman assist you in answering

2 questions, or are the caps and answers based on PwC's

3 analysis and conclusions?

4      A    The caps answers are based on PwC's

5 conclusions.  So we didn't -- we didn't work with

6 Mr. Folkman in looking at these questions and

7 answers, but I believe he was looking at them as

8 well, and we would talk about them.

9      Q    And you were not involved in negotiating

10 the stock purchase agreement with the other --

11      A    No.

12      Q    -- buyer's counsel?

13      A    No.  We were not.

14      Q    Okay.  And if you'd go back to page 1 on

15 Exhibit 25-J.  I'm going to draw your attention,

16 because you've had questions from the Court as well

17 as counsel for Respondent the note:  "All conclusions

18 discussed with Tricarichi and Jim Tricarichi were

19 qualified -- were clearly qualified as more likely

20 than not.  Further, no written answers were provided

21 to Mr. Tricarichi."

22           If I understand your testimony, is it

23 correct, then, that each of those answers to those

24 issues that we just went through you reached that

25 standard of conclusion or above?
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1           MR. BELL:  May I have a moment, Your Honor?

2           THE COURT:  Yes, you may.

3           MR. BELL:  No further cross, Your Honor.

4 THE COURT:  Thank you.

5           Ms. Lampert, do you want any redirect?

6           MS. LAMPERT:  Your Honor, I do have a few

7 follow-up questions.

8           THE COURT:  Yes.

9                REDIRECT EXAMINATION

10           BY MS. LAMPERT:

11      Q    Mr. Stovsky, you just had a question from

12 Mr. Tricarichi's counsel about the type of due

13 diligence that you would do in a transaction where

14 the seller received stock.  Correct?

15      A    Potentially, if we were asked to do it,

16 sure.

17      Q    And you might have covered this, but my

18 notes are little bit fuzzy.  Could you go over with

19 me what type of due diligence the seller would need

20 to do if the seller was receiving cash?

21      A    Due diligence on the buyer?

22      Q    Yes.

23      A    Typically, we wouldn't perform any due

24 diligence on the buyer if we were selling our stock

25 for cash.
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1      A    In the course of being asked to represent a

2 seller to ensure that their transaction is a taxable

3 sale of shares, I was generally looking at whether or

4 not there were provisions that could apply to cause a

5 recharacterization, either a de facto liquidation, as

6 I referenced earlier, of the company being sold or if

7 there was another characterization, if there was some

8 other transaction going on that could adversely

9 impact the form of the transaction.

10      Q    Do you recall what those provision were

11 that you looked at?

12      A    I believe it was primarily around de facto

13 liquidation risk.

14      Q    And what was your analysis with respect to

15 that issue?

16      A    I don't recall specifically.

17      Q    Were you asked to look at -- there's been

18 some testimony that the purchaser of the stock would

19 engage in a transaction to minimize the tax liability

20 of the corporation.  Were you asked to consider that

21 scenario, the reduction of the tax liability, in your

22 analysis?

23      A    I don't recall that specifically.  At the

24 time, my engagement was around representing the

25 seller of shares.  So I wanted to ensure that there
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1 about entering into to minimize the tax liability of

2 Westside?

3      A    I was not asked to evaluate the purchaser's

4 transaction in what they were doing.  I instead was

5 asked to ensure there wasn't anything that the

6 purchaser was doing that would have impacted the

7 characterization of the transaction as a stock sale.

8      Q    So when it says in this paragraph:  "Lohnes

9 also stated that the deduction the corporation was

10 taking for the write-up of the high basis/low value

11 property contributed to Westside and, paren, (to

12 offset the tax income in Westside relative to the

13 legal verdict), end paren, was subject to IRS

14 challenge."

15           Is that something that -- is that an issue

16 that you looked at?

17      A    When you say looked at, can you be more

18 specific as far as what -- what you mean by that?

19      Q    First, were you aware that the purchaser

20 was planning on trying to deduct a high basis/low

21 value property that was contributed to Westside after

22 they purchased the stock from Mr. Tricarichi?

23      A    My recollection was that I was aware that

24 there was going to be some level of business that was

25 conducted in the inter- -- in the corporation on a
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1 was nothing happening on the purchaser side on the

2 closing date, or that otherwise would impact the

3 characterization of the share disposition.

4      Q    I'd like to refer you to page 3 of the

5 Exhibit 25 that you're currently in.

6      A    Yes.

7      Q    There's a paragraph that is in all caps at

8 the bottom half of the page.  Could you read that

9 paragraph to yourself, and when you're done, let me

10 know, please.

11      A    And, I'm sorry.  I may have lost pages.

12 It's page 3 of the -- of Tab 25?

13      Q    Yes.

14      A    Okay.  This -- the all-caps paragraph at

15 the bottom?

16      Q    Yes.

17      A    Read it to myself?

18      Q    Please read it to yourself; see if this

19 refreshes your recollection with respect to the

20 question that I just asked you.

21      A    (Brief pause.)  Okay.  Can you repeat the

22 question?

23      Q    My question is, were you asked by

24 Mr. Stovsky, or anyone else, for that matter, to look

25 at the transaction that the purchaser was thinking

700

1 go-forward basis and that that business would

2 generate or could generate deductions.

3      Q    That that business could generate

4 deductions?

5      A    Yeah.

6      Q    And how would that business generate

7 deductions?

8      A    I don't -- I don't recall, other than this

9 note seems to indicate it was through distressed

10 debt.

11      Q    And did you look to see whether that would

12 be a legitimate deduction?

13      A    No.

14      Q    Okay.  So did you look at it with -- if you

15 continue on after the paren, it says:  "Was subject

16 to IRS challenge."

17           Then there's another parenthetical:  "The

18 IRS could push the deduction to the time period when

19 it was in the hands of the contributing shareholder."

20           Did you look at this, at whether or not the

21 high basis/low value property contribution to

22 Westside, did you look at that -- I'm trying to

23 figure out the light with which you looked at that.

24           Did you look at it as to whether or not the

25 IRS would challenge it, or did you look at it with
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1 respect to whether it was a legitimate deduction?

2      A    Really, really neither.  I was -- I was

3 looking at the facts that were provided to ensure

4 that they weren't going to cause a recharacterization

5 of Mr. Tricarichi's sale as anything other than a

6 stock sale.

7           And in the context of reviewing the facts,

8 I observed that the IRS could challenge certain

9 things that the buyer was planning to do based upon

10 the facts that were provided.

11      Q    And were you concerned that that would

12 cause a recharacterization of the sale -- of the

13 stock sale transaction to Mr. Tricarichi?

14      A    I believe we thought -- I thought no, that

15 it would not cause a recharacterization of

16 Mr. Tricarichi's stock sale.

17      Q    And why did you think that it would not

18 cause a recharacterziation of the stock sale?

19      A    I -- yeah.  I didn't believe the activities

20 that the purchaser was taking within the corporation

21 that the purchase would invoke any principles to

22 cause a change in the characterization of the

23 transaction as that of a stock sale.

24      Q    And which principles are you referring to?

25      A    Perhaps if the company was liquidated on a
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1      Q    Do you know who would have come to this

2 conclusion?

3      A    I don't know the full universe of people

4 that were involved in reaching that conclusion.  But

5 I did consult with another partner within my

6 practice, or within the National Tax Office of PwC,

7 Don Rooken, on this particular issue.

8      Q    So Mr. Rooken came to that conclusion?

9      A    Yes.

10      Q    Did you concur with Mr. Rooken's

11 conclusion?

12      A    I deferred to Mr. Rooken's conclusion in

13 that regard.

14      Q    Can you turn to page 4 of this memo?

15 Paragraph 2, will you read that to yourself?

16      A    (Brief pause.)  Okay.

17      Q    It says:  "Lohnes concluded that a position

18 can be taken that this is not a reportable

19 transaction."  Is that your conclusion?

20      A    Yes.

21      Q    Okay.  And was -- and can you explain to me

22 how you came to the conclusion that this was not a

23 reportable transaction?

24      A    I don't recall how I came to that

25 conclusion.
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1 de facto liquidation is the primary purpose or

2 concern that comes to my mind.

3      Q    And just so that I'm clear, when you say de

4 facto liquidation, can you explain what you mean by

5 that?

6      A    Sure.  De facto liquidation's a principle

7 or a term that's used in tax to refer to a situation

8 where a company is viewed as actually being

9 liquidated for tax purposes even though it legally

10 still exists.

11      Q    And so what would -- strike that.

12           So look in the same paragraph that we were

13 just talking about, and two sentences later, the

14 sentence starting:  "However, this is not

15 Tricarichi's concern."

16      A    Yes.

17      Q    This sentence is referring to successor and

18 transferee liability for Westside taxes, correct?

19      A    Yes.

20      Q    Did you -- was it your determination that

21 Mr. -- it was -- that this issue was not

22 Mr. Tricarichi's concern?

23      A    No, it wasn't.  Successor -- excuse me.

24 Successor and transferee liability is -- is outside

25 of my personal area of expertise.

704

1      Q    Do you recall if you were concerned whether

2 or not this transaction was substantially similar to

3 a reportable transaction or a listed transaction?

4      A    Yes.  I believe we considered whether or

5 not it was similar to the notice 2001-16 listed

6 transaction, which would be a reportable transaction.

7      Q    And how did you -- what -- can you walk me

8 through what your analysis was on that, how you can

9 look at the facts and compare them to notice 2001-16?

10      A    I really don't recall.

11      Q    Did you use the facts that are stated in

12 this memo?

13      A    I believe I stated earlier I'm not sure I

14 saw this memo at the time.  There's another memo that

15 has my writing on it.

16      Q    Can you turn to the memo that has your

17 writing on it, at page 10?

18      A    Okay.

19      Q    Did you rely upon these facts that are

20 listed in this memo in making your conclusion about

21 the -- whether or not this was a listed or reportable

22 transaction?

23      A    At least in part, yes.

24      Q    Do you recall what other facts you might

25 have relied on?
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1 Petitioner?

2           MR. DESMOND:  We have no cross on the

3 questions you did ask regarding his work experience

4 and formal education.

5           THE COURT:  Mr. Klink, you are dismissed.

6           THE WITNESS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

7           MS. WILLIAMS:  Your Honor, Respondent

8 requests --

9           THE COURT:  Yes, before we -- I think, as I

10 mentioned before, I'm not going to rule on the

11 relevancy objections now.  But they have been

12 preserved, and I will address them if necessary in

13 the opinion.  What I would propose is that if

14 Respondent, I think we're going to have simultaneous

15 opening briefs in this case, we'll talk about that

16 later, but I would request that any use Respondent

17 proposes to make of Mr. Klink's testimony be made in

18 your opening brief.  And if you do make use of it,

19 Petitioner can respond to it in their response brief

20 and I will address it in the opinion.  If you do not

21 use any of his testimony in your opening brief, I

22 will decide and will deem you not to have -- that it

23 won't be necessary to address that question.  Because

24 I don't want to have to rule on it if I don't have to

25 rule on it.  So in other words, if you don't feel
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1 Ireland, and we were unable to serve him.  We have

2 also attempted to call Graham Taylor, who was with C.

3 Farkland Shaw I believe, and we have contacted his

4 attorney.  And it is our understanding from the last

5 time that we talked to his attorney that he is out of

6 the country in Australia, so we have been unable to

7 serve him as well.  Those are my representations for

8 the record.  We are ready to rest our case, Your

9 Honor.

10           THE COURT:  Okay.  And Petitioner, you may

11 put on what is left of your case.

12           MR. RIDLEHOOVER:  Thank you, Your Honor.  I

13 don't think it'll take too long.  At this time we

14 call James Tricarichi to the stand.

15           WHEREUPON,

16                JAMES TRICARICHI

17           Called as a witness, and having been first

18 duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

19           THE COURT:  And he is the last witness?

20           MR. RIDLEHOOVER:  We have our
(INAUDIBLE)

21           THE COURT:  They don't have to give any

22 exclusion advise?

23           MR. RIDLEHOOVER:  No. There are no more

24 fact witnesses, Your Honor.

25           THE COURT:  All right. Very good.
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1 like you need it in your opening brief, then we'll

2 just deem the issue to have been gone away.

3           MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

4           THE COURT:  Very good.

5           MS. WILLIAMS:  Your Honor, Respondent

6 requests a 15-minute break.

7           THE COURT:  Okay.  And what's next?

8           MS. LAMPERT:  Your Honor, that's what we're

9 going to discuss.

10           THE COURT:  Good luck.

11           MS. LAMPERT:  Thank you.

12            (Court in recess at 10:43 a.m.)

13            (Court resumes at 11:16 a.m.)

14           MS. LAMPERT:  Your Honor, I'd like to make

15 a few representations for the record, so that you can

16 understand why we didn't call some of the witnesses

17 today, and then we'll rest our case.  We attempted to

18 call Alice Dill-Wendland to the stand for her

19 testimony.  And we believe she's located in Bali.  We

20 contacted our foreign tax attachthat covers Bali and

21 have been unable to locate her to serve her with a

22 subpoena to appear.  We have also attempted to call

23 John McNabola to the stand.  I believe that we've

24 also heard testimony that we believe he's in Ireland.

25 We contacted our foreign tax attachthat covers
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1           THE CLERK:  State your name and address.

2           THE WITNESS:  Jim Tricarichi.  17558 Merry

3 Oaks Trial, Scranton Falls, Ohio 44023.

4                DIRECT EXAMINATION OF JAMES
TRICARICHI

5           BY MR. RIDLEHOOVER:

6      Q    Good morning, Mr. Tricarichi.  Thank you

7 for being here.  My name is Brad Ridlehoover. I'm an

8 attorney for the Petitioner.  I think we can

9 establish that you do know the Petitioner.

10      A    Yes, I do.

11      Q    How do you know the Petitioner?

12      A    He's my brother.

13      Q    Thank you.  Mr. Tricarichi, where are you

14 originally from?

15      A    Cleveland.  Suburbs of Cleveland.

16      Q    And did you go to high school in Cleveland?

17      A    Yes, Bedford Heights High School.

18      Q    And where did you take college?

19      A    College, I attended John Carroll for two

20 years until my father passed away, and then I

21 graduated from Kent State.

22      Q    And after finishing college, can you please

23 describe to the Court your general work experience?

24      A    First job out of college I started entry

25 level. I was working for a company called DunnAA 000681
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1 proposal with anyone in particular?

2      A    There was, you know, like I said, it was

3 all new to me, the process and everything.  And I

4 knew the guy that I played golf with, he had a CPA

5 firm.  And I don't remember what the circumstances

6 were that I talked to him about this meeting.  And he

7 said before you do anything with them, I have another

8 firm you need to talk to.  And that was Fortrend.

9      Q    And who's the individual you were talking

10 about?

11      A    Don Jesco.

12      Q    Don Jesco is what type of professional you

13 said?

14      A    He has his own CPA practice the east side

15 of Cleveland.

16      Q    And at some point, did Mr. Jesco put

17 someone in touch with Fortrend?

18      A    He had some other guy, Gary Zwick, I

19 believe his name is.  I don't know if they did

20 dealings; I can't recall.  But they're the ones that

21 introduced Fortrend to me.  Which I in turn passed

22 the information onto Mike and whoever else.

23      Q    So you had no prior experience with

24 Fortrend before this?

25      A    No.
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1      Q    And you say second opinion.  Who was

2 giving --

3      A    Well, Hahn Loeser.

4      Q    Hahn Loeser.  And that's law firm?

5      A    That he was using, yes.

6      Q    Did you know the law firm?

7      A    I knew one of the partners in the law firm,

8 that was it.

9      Q    Which partner?

10      A    Randy Hart.

11      Q    And who at PWC did you ask your brother or

12 suggest your brother speak to?

13      A    Rich Stovsky.

14      Q    And who is Mr. Stovsky?

15      A    Rich is, now he's the director of their

16 national for their private clients.  But at that time

17 I think he was just a regular partner.  But he was a

18 tax partner originally.

19      Q    And you had some dealings or experience

20 with him?

21      A    Yes. I hired him in 1990 when he was with

22 Coopers to do our audit and tax book.  The company I

23 was working for.

24      Q    Oh, the company you worked for.  Let's turn

25 in your exhibit binder there 103.  Let me know when

977

1      Q    Or Midcoast?

2      A    No.

3      Q    Did you have any general understanding of

4 what Fortrend was planning to do or offer to do?

5      A    I think it was very similar.  But again, I

6 don't recall the details of, you know, or nor really

7 understood what they were proposing.

8      Q    And you conveyed this introduction or

9 someone introduced it to your brother?

10      A    Yes.

11      Q    And after this introduction to Fortrend,

12 did they make any type of proposal that you know of?

13      A    Yes, there was some kind of proposal that

14 was based on some kind of formula that they had.  And

15 I think at that time, they were all estimates.  But I

16 can't recall the detail.

17      Q    Were they offering to also purchase the

18 stock like Midcoast?

19      A    I think they were similar, but I'm not

20 sure; I don't remember.

21      Q    All right.  As far as once these two

22 proposals came in, did you make any recommendations

23 to your brother about these proposals?

24      A    Yes, I recommended that he engage PWC to

25 get a second opinion on the transaction.
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1 you get it.

2      A    First page?

3      Q    Yes, first page.

4      A    Okay.

5      Q    Can you identify this document for the

6 Court?

7      A    It looks like an email I sent to Rich

8 telling him that we needed to add on the debts and

9 document.

10      Q    And what's the date on this email?

11      A    4-8-2003.

12      Q    Let's just turn to page 2, which I believe

13 we've agreed to a tax shield that came out.  Can I

14 give you this document?

15      A    Yes.  Yes. You've got statements of

16 account.

17      Q    Sorry.  Do you recognize this document?

18      A    Yes.

19      Q    All right.  And what is the purpose of this

20 document?

21      A    This is the points that I thought were

22 relevant, again, that he should have looked at, the

23 two deals, one from each company.  Because there were

24 basically two offers.  The second one, I'm not going

25 in order, because it's hard for me to see.
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GUIDANCE TO PRACTITIONERS REGARDING PROFESSIONAL 
OBLIGATIONS  UNDER TREASURY CIRCULAR NO. 230 

Who is Subject to Treasury Circular No. 2301 

The provisions of Treasury Circular No. 230 apply to: 
 

• Attorneys 
• Certified Public Accountants 
• Enrolled Agents 
• Enrolled Actuaries 
• Enrolled Retirement Plan Agents 
• Appraisers 

 Individuals representing others pursuant to limited practice regulations   
 Individuals giving written advice with respect to any entity, transaction 

plan or arrangement, or other plan or arrangement, which is of a type 
the IRS determines to have a potential for tax avoidance or evasion. 

 
The IRS’ Office of Professional Responsibility (OPR) may propose the censure, 
suspension, or disbarment of any practitioner, and the disqualification of any 
appraiser, from practice before the Internal Revenue Service if the individual is 
shown to be incompetent or disreputable, fails to comply with any regulation in 
Circular 230, or with intent to defraud, willfully and knowingly misleads or threatens 
a client or prospective client. The OPR may also propose a monetary penalty for an 
individual, and/or the employer of any individual subject to Treasury Circular No. 
230, for violations of Circular 230 if (i) the violations occurred in connection with the 
individual’s activities on behalf of the employer and (ii) the employer knew or 
reasonably should have known of the individual’s conduct. Treasury Circular No. 230 
§10.3, §10.7, §10.8, §10.50. 31 U.S.C. 330(b). 
 
Selected Obligations Under Treasury Circular No. 230 
 
The following is a summary description of certain obligations under Treasury 
Circular No. 230. This summary does not address all provisions of the Regulations. 
You should read the Circular/Regulations for a more complete understanding of the 
duties and obligations of someone practicing before the IRS. 
 
Due Diligence. You must exercise due diligence in preparing and filing tax returns 
and other documents/submissions, and in determining the correctness of 
representations made by you to your client or to the IRS. You can rely on the work 
product of another person if you use reasonable care in engaging, supervising, 
training, and evaluating that person, taking into account the nature of the 
relationship between you and that person. You generally may rely in good faith and 
                                                      
1 All references to the publication called Treasury Circular No. 230 are to the June, 2014 version found 
at http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/pcir230.pdf. The corresponding Regulations are available at 31 
CFR Subtitle A, Part 10. 
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without verification on information furnished by your client, but you cannot ignore 
other information that has been furnished to you or which is actually known by you. 
You must make reasonable inquiries if any information furnished to you appears to 
be incorrect, incomplete or inconsistent with other facts or assumptions. Treasury 
Circular No. 230 §10.22, §10.34(d). 
 
Competence. You must have the necessary knowledge, skill, thoroughness, and 
preparation for the matter for which you have been engaged. You may be able to 
provide competent representation by researching and educating yourself on the 
issue or by consulting with another tax professional who you know or believe has 
established competence in the field in question, but in doing so you must consider 
the requirements of Internal Revenue Code §7216. Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.35. 
 
Conflicts of Interest. A conflict of interest exists if representing one of your clients will 
be directly adverse to another client. A conflict of interest also exists if there is a 
significant risk that representing a client will be materially limited by your 
responsibilities to another client, a former client or a third person, or by your 
personal interests. When a conflict of interest exists, you may not represent a client 
in an IRS matter unless (i) you reasonably believe that you can provide competent 
and diligent representation to all affected clients, (ii) your representation is not 
prohibited by law, and (iii) all affected clients give informed, written consent to your 
representation. You must retain these consents for 36 months following the 
termination of the engagement and make them available to the IRS/OPR upon 
request. Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.29. 
 
Tax Return Positions. You cannot sign a tax return or refund claim or advise a client to 
take a position on a tax return or refund claim that you know or should know contains 
a position (i) for which there is no reasonable basis; (ii) which is an unreasonable 
position as defined in Internal Revenue Code §6694(a)(2); or, (iii) which is a willful 
attempt to understate tax liability, or a reckless or intentional disregard of rules or 
regulations. An unreasonable position is one which lacks substantial authority as 
defined in IRC §6662 but has a reasonable basis, and is disclosed. For purposes of 
Circular 230 disclosure, if you advised the client regarding the position, or you 
prepared or signed the tax return, you must inform a client of any penalties that are 
reasonably likely to apply to the client with respect to the tax return position and 
how to avoid the penalties through disclosure (or, by not taking the position). 
Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.34. 
 
Written Tax Advice. In providing written advice concerning any Federal tax matter, 
you must (i) base your advice on reasonable assumptions, (ii) reasonably consider 
all relevant facts that you know or should know, and (iii) use reasonable efforts to 
identify and ascertain the relevant facts. You cannot rely upon representations, 
statements, findings, or agreements that are unreasonable or that you know to be 
incorrect, inconsistent, or incomplete. You must not take into account the possibility 
that a tax return will not be audited or that a matter will not be raised on audit in 
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evaluating a Federal tax matter (audit lottery). In providing your written advice, you 
may rely in good faith on the advice of another practitioner only if that advice is 
reasonable considering all facts and circumstances. You cannot rely on the advice of 
a person whom you know or should know is not competent to provide the advice or 
who has an unresolved conflict of interest as defined in §10.29. Treasury Circular No. 
230 §10.37. 
 
Errors and Omissions. If you know that a client has not complied with the U.S. 
revenue laws or has made an error in, or omission from, any return, affidavit, or 
other document which the client submitted or executed under U.S. revenue laws, 
you must promptly inform the client of that noncompliance, error, or omission and 
advise the client regarding the consequences under the Code and regulations of that 
noncompliance, error, or omission. Depending on the particular facts and 
circumstances, the consequences of an error or omission could include (among 
other things) additional tax liability, civil penalties, interest, criminal penalties, and 
an extension of the statute of limitations. Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.21. 
 
Furnishing Information to the IRS/OPR. If you receive a proper and lawful request for 
records or information from the IRS/OPR, you must promptly submit the requested 
information unless in good faith you reasonably believe that it is privileged. If the 
requested information is not in your or your client’s possession, you must promptly 
inform the requesting IRS personnel of that fact. In the case of requests from the IRS, 
you must also provide any information you may have regarding who is in possession 
of the requested information, but you are not required (i) to make inquiries of 
anyone other than your client or (ii) to verify information provided by your client 
regarding the person(s) in possession of the requested information. You must not 
interfere with any lawful attempt by the IRS to obtain information unless in good faith 
you reasonably believe that the information is privileged. You cannot advise a client 
to submit any document to the IRS that is frivolous or that contains or omits 
information in a manner demonstrating an intentional disregard of a rule or 
regulation unless you also advise the client to submit a document that evidences a 
good faith challenge to the rule or regulation. Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.20, 
§10.34(b). 
 
Handling Matters Promptly. You cannot unreasonably delay the prompt disposition of 
any matter before the Internal Revenue Service. This applies with respect to 
responding to your client as well as to IRS personnel. You cannot advise a client to 
submit any document to the IRS for the purpose of delaying or impeding the 
administration of the Federal tax laws. Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.23, §10.34(b). 
 
Client Records. On request of a client, you must promptly return any client records 
necessary for the client to comply with his or her Federal tax obligations, even if 
there is a dispute over fees. You may keep copies of these records. If state law 
allows you to retain a client’s records in the case of a fee dispute, you need only 
return the records that must be attached to the client’s return but you must provide 
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the client with reasonable access to review and copy any additional client records 
retained by you that are necessary for the client to comply with his or her Federal 
tax obligations. The term “client records” includes all written or electronic materials 
provided to you by the client or a third party. “Client records” also include any tax 
return or other document that you prepared and previously delivered to the client, if 
that return or document is necessary for the client to comply with his or her current 
Federal tax obligations. You are not required to provide a client with of your work 
product- i.e., any return, refund claim, or other document that you have prepared 
but not yet delivered to the client if (i) you are withholding the document pending 
the client’s payment of fees related to the document and (ii) your contract with the 
client requires the payment of those fees prior to delivery. Treasury Circular No. 230 
§10.28. 
 
Solicitation. With respect to any Internal Revenue Service matter, you may not use 
any form of public communication or private solicitation containing a false, 
fraudulent, or coercive statement or claim; or a misleading or deceptive statement 
or claim. You also may not assist, or accept assistance from, any person or entity who 
obtains clients or otherwise practices in violation of the solicitation provisions. 
Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.30. 

Negotiating Checks. You may not endorse, negotiate, electronically transfer, or 
direct the deposit of any government check relating to a Federal tax liability issued 
to a client. This prohibits any person subject to Treasury Circular No. 230 from 
directing or accepting payment from the government to the taxpayer into an account 
owned or controlled by that person. This provision does not apply to whistleblower 
payments.  Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.31. 
 
Supervisory Responsibilities. If you have or share principal authority and 
responsibility for overseeing your firm’s tax practice, you must take reasonable 
steps to ensure that your firm has adequate procedures in place to raise awareness 
and to promote compliance with Circular 230 by your firm’s members, associates, 
and employees and that all such employees are complying with the regulations 
governing practice before the IRS. Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.36. 
 
Personal Tax Compliance Responsibilities. You are responsible for insuring the timely 
filing and payment of your personal income tax returns and the tax returns for any 
entity over which you have, or share, control. Failing to file 4 of the last 5 years 
income tax returns, or 5 of the last 7 quarters of employment/excise tax returns is 
per se disreputable and incompetent conduct for which a practitioner may be 
summarily suspended, indefinitely. The willful evasion of the assessment or payment 
of tax is also conduct which violates Circular 230. Treasury Circular No. 230 
§10.51(a)(6). 
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Best Practices. In addition to the rules with which persons must comply, Treasury 
Circular No. 230, §10.33 includes aspirational best practices for those who provide 
advice and/or assistance in preparing submissions to the IRS. These best practices 
include: 
 

• Communicating clearly with the client regarding the terms of the 
   engagement. 
• Establishing facts, determining which facts are relevant, evaluating the 
   reasonableness of any assumptions or representations, relating applicable 
   law (including potentially applicable judicial doctrines) to the relevant facts, 
   and arriving at conclusions supported by the law and the facts. 
• Advising clients regarding the meaning of any conclusions reached by the 

person subject to Circular 230. 
• Advising clients whether they may avoid accuracy-related penalties if the 

client acts in reliance on that person’s advice. 
• Acting fairly and with integrity in practice before the Internal Revenue 

Service. 
 
 
Frequently Asked Questions 

 
Following a disagreement between us, my client called and demanded his records 
back and is refusing to pay me for my time. What are my obligations? 

Generally, upon demand, you must return all documents necessary for the client to 
fulfill his tax obligations. In the case of a dispute over fees for services rendered, 
state law controls whether you may be entitled to withhold some records, but 
otherwise, all documents obtained from the client or a third party must be returned. 
Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.28. 

 
I think my business partner is advising his clients to take credits for which they do 
not qualify. We have never had policies involving supervision or training since we 
are both licensed and neither of us “manages” the other. Can I be sanctioned for 
his negligent or reckless actions? 

Yes. The IRS may designate one or more individuals to be responsible for the firm’s 
compliance with Circular 230. If you know or should have known of others within 
your firm who are engaged in a pattern or practice in violation of Circular 230, you 
could be held accountable for failure to correct the noncompliance, even if it 
involves individuals who you do not supervise. Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.36. 

 
  

AA 000697



Rev. 08/2015 

I joined a tax resolution marketing service that refers representation clients to me 
for a fee. Is this type of solicitation allowed?  

Yes, but you must be cautious about the referral service’s solicitation practices and 
advertising claims. You may not assist or accept assistance from any person or entity 
who obtains clients using false, fraudulent, or coercive claims or otherwise uses 
misleading or deceptive advertising. Treasury Circular No. 230 §10.30(d). 
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